
Department of Labor 

Employment and Training Administration 

Office of Foreign Labor Certification 

Program Debarments 

 

Wage and Hour Division Debarments of OFLC Programs 

 

The link below is to employers debarred or disqualified by the Wage and Hour Division.  

The Office of Foreign Labor Certification, within the Employment and Training 

Administration, will not accept for filing any application or attestation submitted by these 

employers under 20 CFR Part 656 or 20 CFR subparts A, B, C, D, E, H, or I.  (See 20 

CFR 655.750(d); 20 CFR 655.855(d)) 

 

http://www.dol.gov/whd/immigration/H1BDebarment.htm 

 

Permanent Labor Certification Program 

 

The Office of Foreign Labor Certification maintains the list below of debarred 

employers, attorneys, and/or agents from the Permanent Labor Certification Program. For 

more information on debarments under the Permanent Labor Certification Program, see 

20 CFR 656.31(f). 

 

Permanent Labor Certification Debarment List 

Employer Name Employer Location Start of 

Debarment 

End of Debarment 

Immanuel 

Chambers, LLC 

Hyattsville, MD March 30, 2011 March 29, 2014 

Robinson Tax 

Services 

Hyattsville, MD March 30, 2011 March 29, 2014 

Kodilinye Ogonna 

Ojukwu 

Hyattsville, MD March 30, 2011 March 29, 2014 

Tetrazzini, Inc.  Hyattsville, MD April 5, 2011 April 4, 2014 

Botno, Inc.  Stockton, IL August 18, 2012  August 17, 2015   

Mississippi Valley 

Consulting Co., Inc.  

Rancho 

Cucamonga, CA 

August 18, 2012  August 17, 2015   

 

http://www.dol.gov/whd/immigration/H1BDebarment.htm


H-2A Temporary Agricultural Program 

 

The Office of Foreign Labor Certification maintains the list below of debarred employers 

from the H-2A Temporary Agricultural Program.  For more information on the 

debarments under the H-2A Program, see 20 CFR 655.182. 

 

H-2A Labor Certification Debarment List 

Employer Name Employer Location Start of 

Debarment 

End of Debarment 

Stahlman Apiaries, 

Inc. 

Selby, South Dakota February 15, 2014 February 14, 2016 

J & J Harvesting Leads, North Dakota January 19, 2014 January 18, 2016 

Wagner Farm East Windsor, 

Connecticut 

January 19, 2014 January 18, 2016 

Ernest Roach Farms, 

Inc. 

Spanish Fork, Utah October 26, 2013 October 25, 2014 

J. Quintanilla San Antonio, Texas October 26, 2013 October 25, 2014 

RB Farm Picking, 

Inc.  

Miami, Florida October 26, 2013 October 25, 2014 

Eagle Creek Farms, 

Inc. 

Hermitage, Arkansas October 6, 2013 October 5, 2014 

Brian Durham Brodhead, Kentucky September 20, 2013 September 19, 2015 

S. Miller Livestock, 

LLC 

Manti, Utah September 20, 2013 September 19, 2015 

North Country 

Landscape 

Coxackie, New York September 20, 2013 September 19, 2015 

Odegard Harvesting Whitetail, Montana September 20, 2013 September 19, 2015 

DBJ Farms Homestead, Montana September 20, 2013 September 19, 2015 

Derk Price Jensen, Utah September 20, 2013 September 19, 2014 

Mardi Farming, LLC Santa Maria, 

California 

August 18, 2013 August 17, 2014 

Maria Patricio Douglas, Georgia August 18, 2013 August 17, 2014 

Three Sisters Farms 

Services, Inc.  

Ashburn, Georgia August 3, 2013 August 2, 2014 

Linda White & 

Associates, Inc.  

Livingston, 

Louisiana 

June 30, 2013 June 29, 2016 



Delta Ridge Ranch 

LLC 

Carenco, Louisiana June 29, 2013 June 28, 2016 

George Laprairie Jr. Jonesville, Louisiana  June 29, 2013 June 28, 2016 

Goldmine Plantation  Edgard, Louisiana June 29, 2013 June 28, 2016 

Corn & Chilly Farm 

LLC 

West Jordan, Utah June 16, 2013 June 15, 2014 

Dorame Farms Inc.  Mohave Valley, 

Arizona 

June 16, 2013 June 15, 2014 

Ahrens Farms 

Custom Harvesting 

 

Ravenna, Nebraska May 30, 2013 May 29, 2015 

Christopher Martin 

 

Lyons, Georgia May 30, 2013 May 29, 2015 

Westcott Sales and 

Service 

 

Hawkinsville, 

Georgia 

May 30, 2013 May 29, 2015 

Passarell Farms DBA 

Dale Passarell 

Holley, New York March 16, 2013 March 15, 2015 

Gordon Dhal Mantario, 

Saskatchewan, 

Canada 

March 16, 2013 March 15, 2015 

Jared Adrian Sod 

Service 

Sioux Falls, South 

Dakota 

March 16, 2013 March 15, 2015 

Fox Hill Farm Enfield, Connecticut March 16, 2013 March 15, 2015 

Margarita Cardenas 

 

 Lyons, Georgia  August 10, 2013 August 9, 2016 

SWA Tobacco Southwick, MA June 7, 2012 June 6, 2014 

Donald W. Harlow Putney, VT June 8, 2012 June 7, 2014 

Wyatt Farms 

Greenhouse Nursery 

Benton, KY May 2, 2012 May 1, 2015 

Stephen Smith Farms DeRidder, LA May 18, 2012 May 17, 2014 

William Y. Gil, Inc.  Morgan Hill, CA April 8, 2012 April 7, 2014 

Global Horizons 

Manpower, Inc. 

Los Angeles, 

California 

May 6, 2011 May 6, 2014 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



H-2B Temporary Non-Agricultural Program  

 

The Office of Foreign Labor Certification maintains the list below of debarred employers 

from the H-2B Temporary Non-Agricultural Program.  For more information on 

debarments under the H-2B Program, see 20 CFR 655.31. 

 

H-2B Labor Certification Debarment List  

Employer Name  Employer 

Location  

Start of 

Debarment  

End of 

Debarment  

Myers International Midways, 

Inc. 

Gibsonton, 

Florida 

March 7, 2014 March 6, 2016 

Pacheco Contracting LLC Warren, 

Arkansas 

January 22, 2014 January 21, 2016 

River Valley Forestry Russelville, 

Arkansas 

January 4, 2014 January 3, 2015 

Butler Creek Landscaping Trout Creek, 

Montana 

December 30, 

2013 

December 29, 

2015 

Gallegos Corporation Harvey, 

Louisiana 

December 30, 

2013 

December 29, 

2015 

Richard Vega Racing Stable Bensalem, 

Pennsylvania 

December 30, 

2013 

December 29, 

2015 

Sugar Bowl Restaurant Gaylord, 

Michigan 

December 30, 

2013 

December 29, 

2015 

Tri-State Gunite of New York Sloatsburg, New 

York 

December 30, 

2013 

December 29, 

2015 

Island Hills Golf Club Sayville, New 

York 

December 18, 

2013 

December 17, 

2015 

Ramnee Enterprises, LLC 

 

St. Petersburg, 

Florida 

 

November 15, 

2013 

November 14, 

2015 

Valentin Barrera d/b/a Val's 

Construction 

Fort Stockton, 

Texas 

 

November 15, 

2013 

November 14, 

2015 

Gonzalez Plumbing 

 

Brownsville, 

Texas 

November 15, 

2013 

November 14, 

2015 

Noriega Puente Construction Pflugerville, 

Texas 

October 2, 2013 October 1, 2015 

J Mario Lawn & Landscaping Sterling, Virginia October 2, 2013 October 1, 2015 

Midway Rides of Utica Utica, New York October 2, 2013 October 1, 2014 

All U Need Remodeling, Inc. Lilburn, Georgia October 2, 2013 October 1, 2015 

Rolling Hills Country Club Paducah, 

Kentucky 

July 2, 2013 July 1, 2015 

Scotts Garden Center LLC Lexington, South 

Carolina 

July 3, 2013 July 2, 2015 

Green Three Landscaping 

Company 

Pflugerville, 

Texas 

July 2, 2013 July 1, 2015 

G.E.M. Interiors, Inc. Milford, OH February 13, 

2013 

February 13, 

2016 



Ponderosa Reforestation, Inc. Medford, OR April 27, 2012 April 26, 2015 

 



 

U.S. Department of Labor 
Employment and Training Administration 

OFFICE OF FOREIGN LABOR CERTIFICATION 
 

Program Debarments 
 

 

Wage and Hour Division Debarments Barring Participation in OFLC Programs 

 

The link below is to a list of employers debarred or disqualified by the Wage and Hour Division. The Office of Foreign Labor Certification, 
within the Employment and Training Administration, will not accept for filing any application or attestation submitted by these employers 
under 20 CFR Part 656 or 20 CFR subparts A, B, C, D, E, H, or I.  (See, 20 CFR 655.750(d); 20 CFR 655.855(d).) 

 
http://www.dol.gov/whd/immigration/H1BDebarment.htm 

 

 

Permanent Labor Certification Program Debarments 

 

The Office of Foreign Labor Certification maintains the list below of debarred employers, attorneys, and/or agents from the Permanent Labor 
Certification Program. For more information on debarments under the Permanent Labor Certification Program, see 20 CFR 656.31(f). 

 

Permanent Labor Certification Debarment List 

Employer Name Employer 
Location 

Start of Debarment End of Debarment Violation CFR Citation 

      

      

http://www.dol.gov/whd/immigration/H1BDebarment.htm


 

H-2A Temporary Agricultural Labor Certification Program Debarments 

 

The Office of Foreign Labor Certification maintains the list below of employers debarred from the H-2A Temporary Labor Certification 
Agricultural Program.  For more information on debarments under the H-2A Program, see 20 CFR 655.182. 

 

H-2A Labor Certification Debarment List 

Employer Name Employer Location Start of Debarment End of Debarment Violation CFR Citation 

David Jackson S. Deerfield, 
Massachusetts 

January 12, 2017 January 11, 2019 Failure to respond to 
audit request 

20 CFR §655.182(d)(1)(vi) 
and (e)(3) 

Travis and Tara 
Lambourn 

Bowman, North Dakota December 9, 2016 December 9, 2018 Failure to respond to 
audit request 

20 CFR §655.182(d)(1)(vi) 
and (e)(3) 

69 Farms LLC Preston, Idaho September 24, 2016 September 23, 2018 Failure to respond to 
audit request 

20 CFR §655.182(d)(1)(vi) 
and (e)(3) 

Vern Stratton Farms Orem, Utah September 24, 2016 September 24, 2018 Failure to respond to 
audit request 

20 CFR §655.182(d)(1)(vi) 
and (e)(3) 

Avoyelles Honey Co., 
LLC 

Moreauville, Louisiana September 11, 2016 September 11, 2017 Failure to respond to 
audit request 

20 CFR §655.182(d)(1)(vi) 
and (e)(3) 

Javier Xisto Zapata Lyons, Georgia October 22, 2016 October 21, 2017 Non-payment of 
certification fee 

20 CFR § 655.182(d)(2) 
and (e)(3) 

Deal Family Farm Franklin, North Carolina October 22, 2016 October 21, 2017 Non-payment of 
certification fee 

20 CFR § 655.182(d)(2) 
and (e)(3) 

Rafael Barajas Sebring, Florida September 23, 2016 September 22, 2017 Non-payment of 
certification fee 

20 CFR § 655.182(d)(2) 
and (e)(3) 

Gonzalo Fernandez*  Watsonville, California  August 25, 2016 August 24, 2019 WHD referral  

Donna Lucio Lyons, Georgia  August 25, 2016 August 24, 2017 Non-payment of 
certification fee 

20 CFR § 655.182(d)(2) 
and (e)(3) 

German Farms Fullerton, North Dakota  August 5, 2016 August 4, 2018 Failure to respond to 
audit request 

20 CFR §655.182(d)(1)(vi) 
and (e)(3) 



 

H-2A Labor Certification Debarment List (cont’d) 

Employer Name Employer Location Start of Debarment End of Debarment Violation CFR Citation 

Rosalva Garcia Dade City, Florida July 27, 2016 June 27, 2018 Failure to respond to 
audit request 

20 CFR §655.182(d)(1)(vi) 
and (e)(3) 

Melvin Don Underwood 
II 

Marion, Arkansas July 22, 2016 July 21, 2017 Non-payment of 
certification fee 

20 CFR § 655.182(d)(2) and 
(e)(3) 

Quentin Schell Towner, North Dakota  July 22, 2016 July 21, 2017 Non-payment of 
certification fee 

20 CFR § 655.182(d)(2) and 
(e)(3) 

John & Neta Leopky 
Farms 

Seminole, Texas July 21, 2016 July 20, 2018 

A violation of the 
requirements of § 
655.135(j) or (k) 

20 CFR § 655.182(d)(1)(viii) 

Triangle J Farms Seminole, Texas July 21, 2016 July 20, 2018 Failure to pay or 
provide the required 
wages 

20 CFR 655.182(d)(1)(i)     

 

Saxtons River Orchards, 
Inc. 

Saxtons River, Vermont July 9, 2016 July 8, 2018 Failure to respond to 
audit request 

20 CFR §655.182(d)(1)(vi) 
and (e)(3) 

Xavier Horne Lyons, Georgia June 16, 2016 June 15, 2017 Non-payment of 
certification fee 

20 CFR § 655.182(d)(2) and 
(e)(3) 

Jim and Ann Shipley 
William Shipley 

Speedwell, Tennessee May 6, 2016 May 5, 2019 WHD referral  

Belinowski Ranch Anderson, Texas April 30, 2016 April 29, 2017 Failure to respond to 
audit request 

20 CFR §655.182(d)(1)(vi) 
and (e)(3) 

Hargrove AG 
Partnership 

Dewitt, Arkansas April 25, 2016 April 24, 2017 Non-payment of 
certification fee 

20 CFR § 655.182(d)(2) and 
(e)(3) 

Roberto Vasquez Lake Placid, Florida April 25, 2016 April 24, 2017 Non-payment of 
certification fee 

20 CFR § 655.182(d)(2) and 
(e)(3) 

C Hanging L Ranch LLP Choteau, Montana April 10, 2016 April 11, 2018 Failure to respond to 
audit request 

20 CFR §655.182(d)(1)(vi) 
and (e)(3) 

Robert D. Towles Worthville, Kentucky April 2, 2016 April 1, 2017 Failure to respond to 
audit request 

20 CFR §655.182(d)(1)(vi) 
and (e)(3) 



 

H-2A Labor Certification Debarment List (cont’d) 

Employer Name Employer Location Start of Debarment End of Debarment Violation CFR Citation 

Todd Daulton Nancy, Kentucky March 13, 2016 March 12, 2018 Failure to respond to 
audit request 

20 CFR §655.182(d)(1)(vi) 
and (e)(3) 

Omega Lamb LLC El Centro, California  March 4, 2016 March 3, 2017 Non-payment of 
certification fee 

20 CFR § 655.182(d)(2) and 
(e)(3) 

Myrka Mireya Cardenas Lyons, Georgia March 4, 2016 March 3, 2017 Non-payment of 
certification fee 

20 CFR § 655.182(d)(2) and 
(e)(3) 

Olson Farms Douglas, North Dakota February 14, 2016 February 14, 2017 Failure to respond to 
audit request 

20 CFR §655.182(d)(1)(vi) 
and (e)(3) 

M Keneston Corporation Rensselaer, New York December 31, 2015 December 20, 2017 Non-payment of 
certification fee 

20 CFR § 655.182(d)(2) and 
(e)(3) 

Landmark Landscaping Middletown, Maryland December 30, 2015 June 29, 2017 Non-payment of 
certification fee 

20 CFR § 655.182(d)(2) and 
(e)(3) 

Trinity Livestock 
Partnership 

Earth, Texas December 30, 2015 December 29, 2017 Failure to respond to 
audit request 

20 CFR §655.182(d)(1)(vi) 
and (e)(3) 

David C. Martinez Lyons, Georgia December 17, 2015 December 16, 2017 Failure to respond to 
audit request 

20 CFR §655.182(d)(1)(vi) 
and (e)(3) 

Leslie Renee Drew Lyons, Georgia December 17, 2015 December 16, 2017 Failure to respond to 
audit request 

20 CFR §655.182(d)(1)(vi) 
and (e)(3) 

Daneco, LLC Houma, Louisiana September 30, 2015 September 29, 2017 Failure to respond to 
audit request 

20 CFR §655.182(d)(1)(vi) 
and (e)(3) 

Irish Flats Moctezuma, Kansas September 30, 2015 September 29, 2017 Failure to respond to 
audit request 

20 CFR §655.182(d)(1)(vi) 
and (e)(3) 

Agecy I LLC Idabel, Oklahoma August 27, 2015 August 26, 2017 Failure to respond to 
audit request 

20 CFR §655.182(d)(1)(vi) 
and (e)(3) 

John R. Cook Carlisle, Kentucky August 27, 2015 August 26, 2017 Failure to respond to 
audit request 

20 CFR §655.182(d)(1)(vi) 
and (e)(3) 



 

 

H-2A Labor Certification Debarment List (cont’d) 

Employer Name Employer Location Start of Debarment End of Debarment Violation CFR Citation 

Jenschke Farms* Fredericksburg, Texas August 7, 2015 August 7, 2018 WHD referral  

Leslie Cook Carlisle, Kentucky June 22, 2015 June 21, 2017 Failure to respond to 
audit request 

20 CFR §655.182(d)(1)(vi) 
and (e)(3) 

Valley View Orchards Hebron, Maine July 22, 2015 July 21, 2017 Failure to respond to 
audit request 

20 CFR §655.182(d)(1)(vi) 
and (e)(3) 

Chris Robinson Paint Lick, New York June 19, 2015 June 18, 2017 Failure to respond to 
audit request 

20 CFR §655.182(d)(1)(vi) 
and (e)(3) 

Haiti/USA Workforce Miami, Florida June 19, 2015 June 18, 2017 Failure to respond to 
audit request 

20 CFR §655.182(d)(1)(vi) 
and (e)(3) 

K & W Enterprises Albion, New York June 19, 2015 June 18, 2017 Failure to respond to 
audit request 

20 CFR §655.182(d)(1)(vi) 
and (e)(3) 

Jeremy Chandler Climax, Minnesota June 19, 2015 June 18, 2017 Failure to respond to 
audit request 

20 CFR §655.182(d)(1)(vi) 
and (e)(3) 

Leonard Smith Farms Miami, Florida June 19, 2015 June 18, 2017 Failure to respond to 
audit request 

20 CFR §655.182(d)(1)(vi) 
and (e)(3) 

Ferrell Farms* Hermitage, Arkansas May 5, 2015 May 5, 2018 WHD referral  

Altendorf Transport, Inc. Minto, North Dakota April 24, 2015 April 23, 2017 Failure to respond to 
audit request 

20 CFR §655.182(d)(1)(vi) 
and (e)(3) 

Peter Peters Seminole, Texas April 24, 2015 April 23, 2017 Failure to respond to 
audit request 

20 CFR §655.182(d)(1)(vi) 
and (e)(3) 

Agecy II LLC Ipswich, South Dakota March 25, 2015 March 24, 2017 Failure to respond to 
audit request 

20 CFR §655.182(d)(1)(vi) 
and (e)(3) 



 

First American Holding Aubrey, Texas March 25, 2015 March 24, 2017 Failure to respond to 
audit request 

20 CFR §655.182(d)(1)(vi) 
and (e)(3) 

Louie M. Asumendi  Nampa, Idaho March 11, 2015 March 10, 2017 Failure to respond to 
audit request 

20 CFR §655.182(d)(1)(vi) 
and (e)(3) 

Geronimo Sheep Co.*  Vernal, Utah June 23, 2014 June 22, 2017 WHD referral  

Peach Crest Farm LLC*  Stratford, Oklahoma February 10, 2015 February 9, 2018 WHD referral  

 
 
 
* Wage and Hour Division Debarment:    Please direct inquiries to the Wage and Hour Division for further information.   



 

H-2B Temporary Non-Agricultural Labor Certification Program Debarments 

 

The Office of Foreign Labor Certification maintains a list below of debarred employers from the H-2B Temporary Non-Agricultural 
Labor Certification Program. For more information on debarments under the H-2B Program, see 20 CFR 655.31. 

 

H-2B Labor Certification Debarment List 

Employer Name Employer Location Start of Debarment End of Debarment Violation CFR Citation 

El Tule Mexican/Peruvian 
Restaurant LLC d/b/a El Tule 

Lambertville, New 
Jersey 

 
April 25, 2015 

 
April 24, 2017 

Failure to respond to 
audit request 

 
20 CFR §655.73(f)(8) 

Julie’s Outdoor 
Enhancement & Design, Inc. 

Kill Devil Hills, 
North Carolina 

 
April 3, 2015 

 
April 2, 2017 

Failure to respond to 
audit request 

 
20 CFR §655.73(f)(8) 

La Jomac Group Houma, Louisiana March 11, 2015 March 10, 2017 Failure to respond to 
audit request 

20 CFR §655.73(f)(8) 

 

Ineligible Farm Labor Contractors Under the Migrant and Seasonal Agricultural Worker Protection Act 

 

Under the Migrant and Seasonal Agricultural Worker Protection Act (MSPA), only a person holding a valid certificate of registration 
issued by the Secretary of Labor may engage in farm labor contracting activities. The Department’s Wage and Hour Division 
maintains a list of individuals who MAY NOT engage in any activity as a Farm Labor Contractor (FLC) or as a Farm Labor 
Contractor Employee (FLCE) as defined under MSPA. This list is updated on a continual basis and may be accessed here:  
http://www.dol.gov/whd/regs/statutes/mspa_debar.htm 

http://www.dol.gov/whd/regs/statutes/mspa_debar.htm


 

U.S. Department of Labor 
Employment and Training Administration 

OFFICE OF FOREIGN LABOR CERTIFICATION 
 

Program Debarments 
 

Wage and Hour Division Debarments Barring Participation in OFLC Programs 
 

The link below is to a list of employers debarred or disqualified by the Wage and Hour Division. The Office of Foreign Labor Certification, within the 
Employment and Training Administration, will not accept for filing any application or attestation submitted by these employers under 20 CFR Part 656 or 
20 CFR subparts A, B, C, D, E, H, or I. (See, 20 CFR 655.750(d); 20 CFR 655.855(d).) 

 
http://www.dol.gov/whd/immigration/H1BDebarment.htm 

 

Permanent Labor Certification Program Debarments 
 

The Office of Foreign Labor Certification maintains the list below of debarred employers, attorneys, and/or agents from the Permanent Labor Certification 
Program. For more information on debarments under the Permanent Labor Certification Program, see 20 CFR 656.31(f). 

 

Permanent Labor Certification Debarment List 

Entity Entity Type Employer Location Start of Debarment End of Debarment Violation CFR Citation 

George’s Chicken, LLC Employer Harrisonburg, Virginia December 19, 2017 December 19, 2020 Failure to respond to audit 
request 

20 CFR §§ 656.20 and 
656.31(f)(1)(iv) 

George’s Processing, Inc Employer Fayetteville, Arkansas December 19, 2017 December 19, 2020 Failure to respond to audit 
request 

20 CFR §§ 656.20 and 

656.31(f)(1)(iv) 

Global Infotech Inc Employer Schaumburg, Illinois March 27, 2017 March 27, 2020 Failure to respond to audit 

request 

20 CFR §§ 656.20 and 

656.31(f)(1)(iv) 

Harrison Poultry, Inc. Employer Bethlehem, Georgia June 29, 2018 June 29, 2021 Failure to respond to audit 
request 

20 CFR §§ 656.20 and 
656.31(f)(1)(iv) 

Ms. Hee Jung Jenny Shin Attorney Fairfax Station, Virginia May 12, 2017 May 12, 2020 Fraud or willful 
misrepresentation 

20 CFR §§ 656.20 and 
656.31(f)(1)(iv) 

Savvy Info Systems Inc Employer Schaumburg, Illinois May 9, 2017 May 9, 2020 Failure to respond to audit 
request 

20 CFR §§ 656.20 and 
656.31(f)(1)(iv) 

http://www.dol.gov/whd/immigration/H1BDebarment.htm


 

H-2A Temporary Agricultural Labor Certification Program Debarments 
 

The Office of Foreign Labor Certification maintains the list below of employers debarred from the H-2A Temporary Labor Certification 
Agricultural Program. For more information on debarments under the H-2A Program, see 20 CFR 655.182. 

 

H-2A Labor Certification Debarment List 

Entity Entity Type Employer Location Start of Debarment End of Debarment Violation CFR Citation 

AB Ranch Employer Stephenville, Texas April 28, 2017 April 27, 2019 Failure to respond to audit 
request 

20 CFR §655.182(d)(1)(vi) 
and (e)(3) (e)(3) 

Abe-Nancy Froese Employer Seminole, Texas November 23, 2017 November 23, 2019 Failure to respond to audit 
request 20 CFR §655.182(d)(1)(vi) 

and (e)(3) (e)(3) 

Argy Georgiou* Employer Galenton, Colorado July 1, 2018 June 30, 2021 WHD Debarment  

Aricel Lopez* Labor 
Contractor 
(unregistered) 

Freemont, North Carolina May 30, 2018 May 30, 2021 WHD Debarment  

B & R Harvesting and Paul 
Cruz (individual)* 

Labor 
Contractor 

Collins, Georgia April 9, 2017 April 9, 2020 WHD Debarment  

Bartolo Hernandez* Labor 
Contractor 

Lyons, Georgia January 10, 2018 January 10, 2021 WHD Debarment  

Beiza Brothers Harvesting, 
LLC* 

Labor 
Contractor 

Moultrie, Georgia October 20, 2018 October 20, 2021 WHD Debarment  

Calvin Bachmann Farms* Employer Durham, Oklahoma July 20, 2018 July 19, 2021 WHD Debarment  

Catarina Garcia* Employer Alma, Georgia February 2, 2019 February 2, 2021 WHD Debarment  

Cathy Knecht dba Liberty 
Immigration* 

Agent Plentywood, Montana June 16, 2017 June 16, 2020 WHD Debarment  

Christopher L. Smith Farms* Employer Glasgow, Kentucky March 29, 2018 March 29, 2021 WHD Debarment  

County Fair Farm (company) 
and Andrew Williamson 
(individual)* 

Agent Jefferson, Maine March 8, 2017 March 8, 2020 WHD Debarment  

Delia Rojas* Employer Lyons, Georgia April 14, 2017 April 14, 2020 WHD Debarment  

Denton L. Cook / 
Cook Farms* 

Employer Chatham, Virginia October 11, 2017 October 11, 2020 WHD Debarment  



H-2A Labor Certification Debarment List 

Entity Entity Type Employer Location Start of Debarment End of Debarment Violation CFR Citation 

Dove Creek Farms Employer Mount Vernon, Texas February 9, 2018 February 8, 2020 Failure to respond to audit 
request 

20 CFR §655.182(d)(1)(vi) 
and (e)(3) 

Erika Rosales* Employer Alma, Georgia February 2, 2019 February 2, 2021 WHD Debarment  

Evergreen Produce 

 
Employer Adel, Georgia October 29, 2017 October 29, 2019 Failure to comply with the 

employer's obligations to 
recruit U.S. workers 

655.182(d)(1)(iii) 

Georgiou Shearing* Employer Galenton, Colorado July 1, 2018 June 30, 2021 WHD Debarment  

Gonzalo Fernandez* Employer Watsonville, California August 25, 2016 August 24, 2019 WHD Debarment  

Golden Fresh Farms 
Enterprises, L.P.  dba Golden 
Fresh Farms, LP* 

Employer Lyons, Georgia November 1, 2018 November 1, 2021 WHD Debarment  

Hancock Citrus Harvesting, 
LLC * 

Labor 
Contractor 

Dade City, Florida September 4, 2017 September 4, 2020 WHD Debarment  

Klondike Crawfish Farms, 
LLC 

Employer Church Point, Louisiana January 19, 2019 January 19, 2021 Failure to respond to audit 
request 

20 CFR §655.182(d)(1)(vi) 

and (e)(3) 

J & L Harvesting, LLC* Employer Claremont, South Dakota May 8, 2018 May 7, 2021 WHD Debarment  

J & L Farms* Employer Claremont, South Dakota May 8, 2018 May 7, 2019 WHD Debarment  

J.C. Castro dba Castro 
Harvesting* 

Employer Vidalia, Georgia February 27, 2018 February 27, 2021 WHD Debarment  

J. Rivera Harvesting, Inc. 
d/b/a J. Rivera 
Harvesting* 

Employer Wauchula, North Carolina November 30, 2018 November 30, 2021 WHD Debarment  

Jeremy Leseueur Labor 
Contractor 

Lyons, Georgia August 31, 2018 August 31, 2020 Failure to respond to audit 
request 

20 CFR §655.182(d)(1)(vi) 
and (e)(3) 

Jasiel Rodriguez-Nunez* Labor 
Contractor 

Raleigh, North Carolina April 30, 2018 April 30, 2021 WHD Debarment  

Jessica Carreon* Labor 
Contractor 

Quitman, Georgia July 27, 2017 July 27, 2020 WHD Debarment  

Jesus Ledesma 
Employer 

Mulberry, Florida March 2, 2018 March 1, 2020 Failure to respond to audit 
request 

20 CFR §655.182(d)(1)(vi) 
and (e)(3) (e)(3) 

Jim and Ann Shipley William 
Shipley* 

Employer Speedwell, Tennessee May 6, 2016 May 5, 2019 WHD Debarment  

 



H-2A Labor Certification Debarment List 

Entity Entity Type Employer Location Start of Debarment End of Debarment Violation CFR Citation 

John Hudson Farms Inc, dba 
John Hudson Farms 
(company) and Phillip L. 
Hudson (individual)* 

Employer Newton Grove, North 
Carolina 

June 30, 2017 June 30, 2020 WHD Debarment  

K&K Farms Employer Monett, Missouri November 8, 2018 November 8, 2020 Failure to respond to audit 
request 

20 CFR §655.182(d)(1)(vi) 

Lakeisha Wilcox* Labor 
Contractor 

McRae, Georgia December 23, 2018 December 23, 2021 WHD Debarment   

Laura Orellana* Employer Vidalia, Georgia February 4, 2019 February 4, 2021 WHD Debarment  

Marisa Garcia Pineda- H2A 
FLC* 

Employer Statonsburg, North Carolina March 5, 2018 March 4, 2021 WHD Debarment  

Maximiano Larralde* Employer Sterling, Colorado July 1, 2018 June 30, 2021 WHD Debarment  

Monica Saavedra1 Agent Douglas, Georgia May 30, 2018 May 29, 2021 Failure to comply with the 
employer's obligations to 
recruit U.S. workers 

20 CFR §655.182(b) and 
(d)(1)(iii) 

Monica Saavedra Agent Douglas, Georgia October 29, 2017 October 29, 2019 Failure to comply with the 
employer's obligations to 
recruit U.S. workers 

20 CFR §655.182(d)(1)(iii) 

Nemorio Resendiz Employer Moultrie, Georgia April 28, 2017 April 27, 2019 Failure to respond to audit 
request 

20 CFR §655.182(d)(1)(vi) 
and (e)(3) (e)(3) 

P & M LLC* Labor 
Contractor 

Sterling, Colorado July 1, 2018 June 30, 2021 WHD Debarment  

Pequeño Harvesting, LLC* Labor 
Contractor 

Labelle, Florida September 21, 2018 September 21, 2021 WHD Debarment  

Peter Larralde* Employer Galenton, Colorado July 1, 2018 June 30, 2021 WHD Debarment  

 
 

1 Monica Saavedra acted as an authorized agent on the behalf of two different employers resulting in two separate debarment actions. 



 

H-2A Labor Certification Debarment List 

Entity Entity Type Employer Location Start of Debarment End of Debarment Violation CFR Citation 

REB Cane Creek Farms, Inc 
dba REB Cane Creek Farms* 

Employer Vardaman, Mississippi September 9, 2017 September 9, 2020 WHD Debarment  

Ruben Ruiz (DeSoto 
Harvesting)* 

Labor 
Contractor 

Arcadia, Florida October 8, 2016 October 8, 2019 WHD Debarment  

Ruben V. Serna 
dba Serna Harvesting* 

Labor 
Contractor 

Clinton, North Carolina September 5, 2018 September 5, 2021 WHD Debarment  

Sebastian Larralde* Employer Galenton, Colorado July 1, 2018 June 30, 2021 WHD Debarment  

S&J Labor Contractors LLC* Labor 
Contractor 

Lyons, Georgia November 3, 2018 November 3, 2021 WHD Debarment  

Tiara Williams* Labor 
Contractor 

Alma, Georgia December 23, 2018 December 23, 2021 WHD Debarment  

Travis and Tara Lambourn 
dba Lambourn Farm* 

Employer Bowman, North Dakota July 5, 2017 July 5, 2020 WHD Debarment  

Triple F Harvesting, LLC* Employer LaBelle, Florida August 30, 2018 August 30, 2021 WHD Debarment  

Vasquez Citrus & Hauling, 
Inc.* 

Labor 
Contractor 

Lake Placid, Florida March 7, 2018 March 6, 2021 WHD Debarment  

Worldwide Staffing LLC* Labor 
Contractor 

Dunn, North Carolina March 7, 2018 March 7, 2021 WHD Debarment  

Xavier Horne Employer Lyons, Georgia September 27, 2017 September 26, 2019 Failure to respond to audit 
request 

20 CFR §655.182(d)(1)(vi) 
and (e)(3) (e)(3) 

Yesenia Perez Employer Axson, Georgia September 27, 2017 September 26, 2019 Failure to respond to audit 
request 

20 CFR §655.182(d)(1)(vi) 
and (e)(3) (e)(3) 

 

* Wage and Hour Division Debarment: Please direct inquiries to the Wage and Hour Division for further information. 



H-2B Temporary Non-Agricultural Labor Certification Program Debarments 
 

The Office of Foreign Labor Certification maintains a list below of debarred employers from the H-2B Temporary Non-Agricultural 
Labor Certification Program. For more information on debarments under the H-2B Program, see 20 CFR 655.31. 

 

H-2B Labor Certification Debarment List 

Entity Entity Type Employer Location Start of Debarment End of Debarment Violation CFR Citation 

Ameritek Industries Employer San Fernando, California March 30, 2018 March 29, 2020 Failure to respond to audit 
request 

20 CFR §655.73(f)(8) 

CC’s Landscaping, Inc.  
d/b/a CC’s Landscaping 

Employer Mayfield Heights, Ohio February 4, 2019  February 4, 2022 WHD debarment  

Clarke’s Landscaping and 
Lawn Care, Inc.** 

Employer Telford, Pennsylvania November 9, 2017 November 9, 2022 OIG referral  

Georgina’s Taqueria*  Employer Traverse City, Michigan October 6, 2018 October 6, 2020 WHD debarment  

Gomez Lawn Care, LLC 
d/b/a Gomez Lawncare* 

Employer Holland, Michigan  December 7, 2018 December 7, 2023 WHD debarment  

Gordon Stone Company LLC Employer Gordon, Texas December 17, 2018 December 10, 2021 Failure to respond to audit 
request 

20 CFR §655.73(f)(8) 

Hernandez Lawn 
Services, Inc. 

Employer Round Lake, Illinois April 12, 2018 April 11, 2020 Failure to respond to audit 
request 

20 CFR §655.73(f)(8) 

John Stinebaugh, DBA John 
Stienebaugh Racing Stables 

Employer San Antonio, Texas March 30, 2018 March 29, 2020 Failure to respond to audit 
request 

20 CFR §655.73(f)(8) 

 
Ineligible Farm Labor Contractors Under the Migrant and Seasonal Agricultural Worker Protection Act 

  

Under the Migrant and Seasonal Agricultural Worker Protection Act (MSPA), only a person holding a valid certificate of registration issued by 
the Secretary of Labor may engage in farm labor contracting activities. The Department’s Wage and Hour Division maintains a list of individuals 
who MAY NOT engage in any activity as a Farm Labor Contractor (FLC) or as a Farm Labor Contractor Employee (FLCE) as defined under 
MSPA. This list is updated on a continual basis and may be accessed here: http://www.dol.gov/whd/regs/statutes/mspa_debar.htm 

 

* Wage and Hour Division Debarment: Please direct inquiries to the Wage and Hour Division for further information. 
** Department of Labor, Office of Inspector General (OIG) investigative findings: Please direct inquiries to the Department of Labor’s Office of Inspectors General 
for further information. 

http://www.dol.gov/whd/regs/statutes/mspa_debar.htm
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U.S. Department of Labor 
Employment and Training Administration  

OFFICE OF FOREIGN LABOR CERTIFICATION 
 

Program Debarments 
 
 
Wage and Hour Division Debarments Barring Participation in OFLC Programs 

 
The link below is to a list of employers debarred or disqualified by the Wage and Hour 
Division. The Office of Foreign Labor Certification, within the Employment and Training 
Administration, will not accept for filing any application or attestation submitted by these 
employers under 20 CFR Part 656 or 20 CFR subparts A, B, C, D, E, H, or I.  (See, 20 
CFR 655.750(d); 20 CFR 655.855(d).) 

 
http://www.dol.gov/whd/immigration/H1BDebarment.htm 

 
 
Permanent Labor Certification Program Debarments 

 
The Office of Foreign Labor Certification maintains the list below of debarred 
employers, attorneys, and/or agents from the Permanent Labor Certification Program. 
For more information on debarments under the Permanent Labor Certification Program, 
see 20 CFR 656.31(f). 

 

Permanent Labor Certification Debarment List 

Employer Name Employer Location Start of Debarment End of Debarment 

Botno, Inc. Stockton, IL August 18, 2012 August 17, 2015 

Mississippi Valley 
Consulting Co., Inc. 

Rancho 
Cucamonga, CA 

August 18, 2012 August 17, 2015 

 
  

http://www.dol.gov/whd/immigration/H1BDebarment.htm
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H-2A Temporary Agricultural Labor Certification Program Debarments 
 
The Office of Foreign Labor Certification maintains the list below of employers debarred 
from the H-2A Temporary Labor Certification Agricultural Program.  For more information 
on debarments under the H-2A Program, see 20 CFR 655.182. 
 

H-2A Labor Certification Debarment List 

Employer Name Employer Location Start of Debarment End of Debarment 

Anton Fertilizer, Inc. Dighton, Kansas March 30, 2014 March 29, 2016 

Great Plains Fluid 
Service, Inc. 

Greensburg, Kansas March 30, 2014 March 29, 2016 

Annabella Land & 
Cattle Co LLC 

Annabella, Utah May 9, 2014 May 9, 2015 

Promax Inc. Whitewater, Kansas May 15, 2014 May 14, 2016 

Trust Nursery Pulaski, New York March 21, 2014 March 20, 2015 

Stahlman Apiaries, 
Inc. 

Selby,  
South Dakota 

February 15, 2014 February 14, 2016 

J & J Harvesting 
Leads, North 
Dakota 

January 19, 2014 January 18, 2016 

Wagner Farm 
East Windsor, 
Connecticut 

January 19, 2014 January 18, 2016 

Ernest Roach Farms, 
Inc. 

Spanish Fork, Utah October 26, 2013 October 25, 2014 

J. Quintanilla San Antonio, Texas October 26, 2013 October 25, 2014 

RB Farm Picking, 
Inc. 

Miami, Florida October 26, 2013 October 25, 2014 

Eagle Creek Farms, 
Inc. 

Hermitage, 
Arkansas 

October 6, 2013 October 5, 2014 

Brian Durham 
Brodhead,  
Kentucky 

September 20, 2013 September 19, 2015 

S. Miller Livestock, 
LLC 

Manti, Utah September 20, 2013 September 19, 2015 

North Country 
Landscape 

Coxackie,  
New York 

September 20, 2013 September 19, 2015 
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H-2A Labor Certification Debarment List 

Odegard Harvesting Whitetail, Montana September 20, 2013 September 19, 2015 

DBJ Farms 
Homestead, 
Montana 

September 20, 2013 September 19, 2015 

Derk Price Jensen, Utah September 20, 2013 September 19, 2014 

Mardi Farming, LLC 
Santa Maria, 
California 

August 18, 2013 August 17, 2014 

Maria Patricio Douglas, Georgia August 18, 2013 August 17, 2014 

Three Sisters Farms 
Services, Inc. 

Ashburn, Georgia August 3, 2013 August 2, 2014 

Linda White & 
Associates, Inc. 

Livingston, 
Louisiana 

June 30, 2013 June 29, 2016 

Delta Ridge Ranch 
LLC 

Carenco, Louisiana June 29, 2013 June 28, 2016 

George Laprairie Jr. Jonesville, Louisiana June 29, 2013 June 28, 2016 

Goldmine Plantation Edgard, Louisiana June 29, 2013 June 28, 2016 

Corn & Chilly Farm 
LLC 

West Jordan, Utah June 16, 2013 June 15, 2014 

Dorame Farms Inc. 
Mohave Valley, 
Arizona 

June 16, 2013 June 15, 2014 

Ahrens Farms 
Custom Harvesting 

Ravenna, Nebraska May 30, 2013 May 29, 2015 

Christopher Martin Lyons, Georgia May 30, 2013 May 29, 2015 

Westcott Sales and 
Service 

Hawkinsville, 
Georgia 

May 30, 2013 May 29, 2015 

Passarell Farms DBA 
Dale Passarell 

Holley, New York March 16, 2013 March 15, 2015 

Gordon Dhal 
Mantario, 
Saskatchewan, 
Canada 

March 16, 2013 March 15, 2015 

Jared Adrian Sod 
Service 

Sioux Falls, South 
Dakota 

March 16, 2013 March 15, 2015 
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H-2A Labor Certification Debarment List 

Fox Hill Farm Enfield, Connecticut March 16, 2013 March 15, 2015 

Margarita Cardenas Lyons, Georgia August 10, 2013 August 9, 2016 

SWA Tobacco Southwick, MA June 7, 2012 June 6, 2014 

Donald W. Harlow Putney, VT June 8, 2012 June 7, 2014 

Wyatt Farms 
Greenhouse Nursery 

Benton, KY May 2, 2012 May 1, 2015 

 

 
 
 
H-2B Temporary Non-Agricultural Labor Certification Program Debarments 
 
The Office of Foreign Labor Certification maintains a list below of debarred employers 
from the H-2B Temporary Non-Agricultural Labor Certification Program.  For more 
information on debarments under the H-2B Program, see 20 CFR 655.31. 
 

H-2B Labor Certification Debarment List 

Employer Name Employer Location Start of Debarment End of Debarment 

Universal Landscape 
Services 

New Braunfels, 
Texas 

May 29, 2014 May 28, 2016 

Verde Corporation Baltimore, Maryland May 4, 2014 May 3, 2015 

Myers International 
Midways, Inc. 
Inc. 

Gibsonton,  
Florida 

March 7, 2014 March 6, 2016 

Pacheco Contracting LLC 
Warren,  
Arkansas 

January 22, 2014 January 21, 2016 

River Valley Forestry 
Russelville, 
Arkansas 

January 4, 2014 January 3, 2015 

Butler Creek Landscaping 
Trout Creek, 
Montana 

December 30, 
2013 

December 29, 
2015 

Gallegos Corporation 
Harvey, 
Louisiana 

December 30, 
2013 

December 29, 
2015 

Richard Vega Racing 
Stable 

Bensalem, 
Pennsylvania 

December 30, 
2013 

December 29, 
2015 

Sugar Bowl Restaurant 
Gaylord, 
Michigan 

December 30, 
2013 

December 29, 
2015 
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H-2B Labor Certification Debarment List 

Tri-State Gunite of New 
York 

Sloatsburg, New 
York 

December 30, 
2013 

December 29, 
2015 

Island Hills Golf Club 
Sayville, New 
York 

December 18, 
2013 

December 17, 
2015 

Ramnee Enterprises, LLC 
St. Petersburg, 
Florida 

November 15, 
2013 

November 14, 
2015 

Valentin Barrera d/b/a 
Val's Construction 

Fort Stockton, 
Texas 

November 15, 
2013 

November 14, 
2015 

Gonzalez Plumbing 
Brownsville, 
Texas 

November 15, 
2013 

November 14, 
2015 

Noriega Puente 
Construction 

Pflugerville, 
Texas 

October 2, 2013 October 1, 2015 

J Mario Lawn & 
Landscaping 

Sterling, Virginia October 2, 2013 October 1, 2015 

Midway Rides of Utica Utica, New York October 2, 2013 October 1, 2014 

All U Need Remodeling, 
Inc. 

Lilburn, Georgia October 2, 2013 October 1, 2015 

Rolling Hills Country Club 
Paducah, 
Kentucky 

July 2, 2013 July 1, 2015 

Scotts Garden Center LLC 
Lexington, South 
Carolina 

July 3, 2013 July 2, 2015 

Green Three Landscaping 
Company 

Pflugerville, 
Texas 

July 2, 2013 July 1, 2015 

G.E.M. Interiors, Inc. Milford, OH 
February 13, 
2013 

February 13, 
2016 

Ponderosa 
Reforestation, Inc. 

Medford, OR April 27, 2012 April 26, 2015 

 
 

 
Ineligible Farm Labor Contractors Under the Migrant and Seasonal Agricultural 
Worker Protection Act  
 
Under the Migrant and Seasonal Agricultural Worker Protection Act (MSPA), only a 
person holding a valid certificate of registration issued by the Secretary of Labor may 
engage in farm labor contracting activities. The Department’s Wage and Hour Division 
maintains a list of individuals who MAY NOT engage in any activity as a Farm Labor 
Contractor (FLC) or as a Farm Labor Contractor Employee (FLCE) as defined under 
MSPA. This list is updated on a continual basis and may be accessed here:  
http://www.dol.gov/whd/regs/statutes/mspa_debar.htm  
 

http://www.dol.gov/whd/regs/statutes/mspa_debar.htm


 

U.S. Department of Labor 
Employment and Training Administration 

OFFICE OF FOREIGN LABOR CERTIFICATION 
 

Program Debarments 

 

Wage and Hour Division Debarments Barring Participation in OFLC Programs 

 

The link below is to a list of employers debarred or disqualified by the Wage and Hour Division. The Office of Foreign Labor Certification, within the 
Employment and Training Administration, will not accept for filing any application or attestation submitted by these employers under 20 CFR Part 656 or 
20 CFR subparts A, B, C, D, E, H, or I.  (See, 20 CFR 655.750(d); 20 CFR 655.855(d).)  

 
http://www.dol.gov/whd/immigration/H1BDebarment.htm 

 

Permanent Labor Certification Program Debarments 

 

The Office of Foreign Labor Certification maintains the list below of debarred employers, attorneys, and/or agents from the Permanent Labor Certification 
Program. For more information on debarments under the Permanent Labor Certification Program, see 20 CFR 656.31(f). 

 

Permanent Labor Certification Debarment List 

Entity Entity Type Employer Location Start of Debarment End of Debarment Violation CFR Citation 

George’s Chicken, LLC Employer Harrisonburg, Virginia December 19, 2017 December 19, 2020 Failure to respond to audit 
request 

20 CFR §§ 656.20 and 
656.31(f)(1)(iv) 

George’s Processing, Inc Employer Fayetteville, Arkansas December 19, 2017 December 19, 2020 Failure to respond to audit 
request 

20 CFR §§ 656.20 and 
656.31(f)(1)(iv) 

Global Infotech Inc Employer Schaumburg, Illinois March 27, 2017 March 27, 2020 Failure to respond to audit 
request 

20 CFR §§ 656.20 and 
656.31(f)(1)(iv) 

Harrison Poultry, Inc. Employer Bethlehem, Georgia  June 29, 2018 June 29, 2021 Failure to respond to audit 
request 

20 CFR §§ 656.20 and 
656.31(f)(1)(iv) 

Ms. Hee Jung Jenny Shin Attorney Fairfax Station, Virginia  May 12, 2017 May 12, 2020 Fraud or willful 
misrepresentation 

20 CFR §§ 656.20 and 
656.31(f)(1)(iv) 

Savvy Info Systems Inc Employer Schaumburg, Illinois  May 9, 2017 May 9, 2020 Failure to respond to audit 
request 

20 CFR §§ 656.20 and 
656.31(f)(1)(iv) 

http://www.dol.gov/whd/immigration/H1BDebarment.htm


 

H-2A Temporary Agricultural Labor Certification Program Debarments 

 

The Office of Foreign Labor Certification maintains the list below of employers debarred from the H-2A Temporary Labor Certification 
Agricultural Program.  For more information on debarments under the H-2A Program, see 20 CFR 655.182. 

 

H-2A Labor Certification Debarment List 

Entity Entity Type Employer Location Start of Debarment End of Debarment Violation CFR Citation 

69 Farms LLC Employer Preston, Idaho September 24, 2016 September 23, 2018 Failure to respond to audit 
request 

20 CFR §655.182(d)(1)(vi) 
and (e)(3) 

AB Ranch Employer Stephenville, Texas April 28, 2017 April 27, 2019 
Failure to respond to audit 
request 

20 CFR §655.182(d)(1)(vi) 
and (e)(3) (e)(3) 

Abe-Nancy Froese Employer Seminole, Texas November 23, 2017 November 23, 2019 
Failure to respond to audit 
request 

20 CFR §655.182(d)(1)(vi) 
and (e)(3) (e)(3) 

Argy Georgiou Employer Galenton, Colorado July 1,  2018 June 30, 2021 WHD referral 
 

Aricel Lopez Employer Freemont, North Carolina May 30, 2018 May 30, 2021 WHD referral 
 

B & R Harvesting and Paul 
Cruz (individual)* 

Employer Collins, Georgia April 9, 2017 April 9, 2020 WHD referral 
 

Bartolo Hernandez* Employer 
 

Lyons, Georgia January 10, 2018 January 10, 2021 WHD referral 
 

Cathy Knecht dba Liberty 
Immigration* 

Agent Plentywood, Montana June 16, 2017 June 16, 2020 WHD referral 
 

Christopher L. Smith Farms* Employer Glasgow, Kentucky March 29,  2018 March 29, 2021 WHD referral 
 

County Fair Farm (company) 
and Andrew Williamson 
(individual)* 

Agent Jefferson, Maine March 8, 2017 March 8, 2020 WHD referral  

David Jackson Employer S. Deerfield, Massachusetts January 12, 2017 January 11, 2019 Failure to respond to audit 
request 

20 CFR §655.182(d)(1)(vi) 
and (e)(3) 
 
 
 
 

Delia Rojas* Employer Lyons, Georgia April 14, 2017 April 14, 2020 
WHD referral  

Denton L. Cook /  
Cook Farms* 

Employer Chatham, Virginia  October 11, 2017 October 11, 2020 
WHD referral   



 

H-2A Labor Certification Debarment List 

Entity Entity Type Employer Location Start of Debarment End of Debarment Violation CFR Citation 

Dove Creek Farms Employer Mount Vernon, Texas February 9, 2018 February 8, 2020 Failure to respond to audit 
request 

20 CFR §655.182(d)(1)(vi) 
and (e)(3) 

Employment USA, LLC and 
Kevin Opp* 

Employer Aberdeen, South Dakota September 1, 2015 August 31, 2018 WHD referral 
 

Evergreen Produce Employer Adel, Georgia October 29, 2017 
  

October 29, 2019 Failure to comply with the 
employer's obligations to 
recruit U.S. workers 

655.182(d)(1)(iii) 

German Farms Employer Fullerton, North Dakota  August 5, 2016 August 4, 2018 Failure to respond to audit 
request 

20 CFR §655.182(d)(1)(vi) 
and (e)(3) 

Georgiou Shearing Employer Galenton, Colorado  July 1,  2018 June 30, 2021 WHD referral  

Gonzalo Fernandez*  Employer Watsonville, California  August 25, 2016 August 24, 2019 WHD referral 
 

Hancock Citrus Harvesting, 
LLC * 

Employer Dade City, Florida  September 4, 2017 September 4, 2020 WHD referral 
 

J & L Harvesting, LLC* Employer Claremont, South Dakota May 8, 2018 May 7, 2021 WHD referral 
 

J & L Farms* Employer Claremont, South Dakota May 8, 2018 May 7, 2019 WHD referral 
 

J.C. Castro dba Castro 
Harvesting* 

Employer Vidalia, Georgia February 27,  2018 February 27, 2021 WHD referral 
 

J. Rivera Harvesting, Inc. 
d/b/a J. Rivera Harvesting* 

Employer Wauchula, North Carolina April 30, 2018 April 29, 2021 WHD referral 
 

Jasiel Rodriguez-Nunez* Employer Raleigh, North Carolina April 30, 2018 April 30, 2021 WHD referral 
 

Jenschke Farms* 
Employer 

Fredericksburg, Texas 
August 7, 2015 August 7, 2018 

WHD referral 
 

Jessica Carreon* Employer Quitman, Georgia July 27, 2017 July 27, 2020 WHD referral 
 

Jesus Ledesma Employer Mulberry, Florida  March 2, 2018 March 1, 2020 Failure to respond to audit 
request 

20 CFR §655.182(d)(1)(vi) 
and (e)(3) (e)(3) 

Jim and Ann Shipley William 
Shipley* 

Employer Speedwell, Tennessee May 6, 2016 May 5, 2019 WHD referral  



 

H-2A Labor Certification Debarment List 

Entity Entity Type Employer Location Start of Debarment End of Debarment Violation CFR Citation 

John Hudson Farms Inc, dba 
John Hudson Farms 
(company) and Phillip L. 
Hudson (individual)* 

Employer Newton Grove, North 
Carolina 

June 30, 2017 June 30, 2020 WHD referral 
 

LOV Ranch Co, LLLP dba 
LOV Ranch* 

Employer Rifle, Colorado January 31, 2018 January 20, 2019 WHD referral  

Marisa Garcia Pineda- H2A 
FLC* 

Employer Statonsburg, North Carolina March 5,  2018 March 4, 2021 WHD referral  

Maximiano Larralde Employer Sterling, Colorado July 1,  2018 June 30, 2021 WHD referral  

Monica Saavedra Agent Douglas, Georgia October 29, 2017 
  

October 29, 2019 Failure to comply with the 
employer's obligations to 
recruit U.S. workers 

655.182(d)(1)(iii) 

Nemorio Resendiz Employer  Moultrie, Georgia April 28, 2017 April 27, 2019 Failure to respond to audit 
request 

20 CFR §655.182(d)(1)(vi) 
and (e)(3) (e)(3) 

P & M LLC Employer Sterling, Colorado July 1,  2018 June 30, 2021 WHD referral  

Peter Larralde Employer Galenton, Colorado July 1,  2018 June 30, 2021 WHD referral  

REB Cane Creek Farms, Inc 
dba REB Cane Creek Farms* 

Employer Vardaman, Mississippi September 9, 2017 September 9, 2020 WHD referral 
 

Rosalva Garcia Employer 
 

Dade City, Florida July 27, 2016 June 27, 2018 Failure to respond to audit 
request 

20 CFR §655.182(d)(1)(vi) 
and (e)(3) 

Ruben Ruiz (DeSoto 
Harvesting)* 

Employer Arcadia, Florida  October 8, 2016 October 8, 2019 WHD referral 
 

 
 
 



 

H-2A Labor Certification Debarment List 

Entity Entity Type Employer Location Start of Debarment End of Debarment Violation CFR Citation 

Sebastian Larralde Employer Galenton, Colorado  July 1,  2018 June 30, 2021 WHD referral  

Travis and Tara Lambourn Employer Bowman, North Dakota December 9, 2016 December 9, 2018 Failure to respond to audit 
request 

20 CFR §655.182(d)(1)(vi) 
and (e)(3) 

Travis and Tara Lambourn 
dba Lambourn Farm* 

Employer Bowman, North Dakota July 5, 2017 July 5, 2020 WHD referral 
 

Vasquez Citrus & Hauling, 
Inc.* 

Employer Lake Placid, Florida March  7, 2018 March 6, 2021 WHD referral  

Vern Stratton Farms Employer Orem, Utah September 24, 2016 September 24, 2018 Failure to respond to audit 
request 

20 CFR §655.182(d)(1)(vi) 
and (e)(3) 

Worldwide Staffing LLC Employer Dunn, North Carolina March 7, 2018 March 7, 2021 WHD referral  

Xavier Horne Employer Lyons, Georgia September 27, 2017 September 26, 2019 Failure to respond to audit 
request 

20 CFR §655.182(d)(1)(vi) 
and (e)(3) (e)(3) 

Yesenia Perez Employer Axson, Georgia September 27, 2017 September 26, 2019 Failure to respond to audit 
request 

20 CFR §655.182(d)(1)(vi) 
and (e)(3) (e)(3) 

 
* Wage and Hour Division Debarment:    Please direct inquiries to the Wage and Hour Division for further information.   



 

 

H-2B Temporary Non-Agricultural Labor Certification Program Debarments 

 

The Office of Foreign Labor Certification maintains a list below of debarred employers from the H-2B Temporary Non-Agricultural 
Labor Certification Program. For more information on debarments under the H-2B Program, see 20 CFR 655.31. 

 

H-2B Labor Certification Debarment List 

Entity Entity Type Employer Location Start of Debarment End of Debarment Violation CFR Citation 

Ameritek Industries Employer San Fernando, California  March 30, 2018 March 29, 2020 Failure to respond to audit 
request 

20 CFR §655.73(f)(8) 

Clarke’s Landscaping and 
Lawn Care, Inc.** 

Employer Telford, Pennsylvania November 9, 2017 November 9, 2022 OIG referral  

John Stinebaugh, DBA John 
Stienebaugh Racing Stables 

Employer San Antonio, Texas March 30, 2018 March 29, 2020 Failure to respond to audit 
request 

20 CFR §655.73(f)(8)  

 

Ineligible Farm Labor Contractors Under the Migrant and Seasonal Agricultural Worker Protection Act 

 

Under the Migrant and Seasonal Agricultural Worker Protection Act (MSPA), only a person holding a valid certificate of registration 
issued by the Secretary of Labor may engage in farm labor contracting activities. The Department’s Wage and Hour Division 
maintains a list of individuals who MAY NOT engage in any activity as a Farm Labor Contractor (FLC) or as a Farm Labor 
Contractor Employee (FLCE) as defined under MSPA. This list is updated on a continual basis and may be accessed here:  
http://www.dol.gov/whd/regs/statutes/mspa_debar.htm 

 

 

**Department of Labor, Office of Inspector General (OIG) investigative findings:  Please direct inquiries to the Department of Labor’s 
Office of Inspectors General for further information. 

http://www.dol.gov/whd/regs/statutes/mspa_debar.htm


Department of Labor 

Employment and Training Administration 

Office of Foreign Labor Certification 

Program Debarments 

 

 

Wage and Hour Division Debarments of OFLC Programs 

 

The link below is to employers debarred or disqualified by the Wage and Hour Division.  

The Office of Foreign Labor Certification, within the Employment and Training 

Administration, will not accept for filing any application or attestation submitted by these 

employers under 20 CFR Part 656 or 20 CFR subparts A, B, C, D, E, H, or I.  (See 20 

CFR 655.750(d); 20 CFR 655.855(d)) 

 

http://www.dol.gov/whd/immigration/H1BDebarment.htm 

 

 

 

Permanent Labor Certification Program 

 

The Office of Foreign Labor Certification maintains the list below of debarred 

employers, attorneys, and/or agents from the Permanent Labor Certification Program. For 

more information on debarments under the Permanent Labor Certification Program, see 

20 CFR 656.31(f). 

 

Permanent Labor Certification Debarment List 

Employer Name Employer Location Start of 

Debarment 

End of Debarment 

Ms. Sai Hyun Lee Duluth, GA March 18, 2010 March 17, 2013 

HR Prime, LLC Chapel Hill, NC October 15, 2010 October 14, 2013 

Outdoor Solutions Columbus, GA January 3, 2011 January 2, 2014 

Super Technologies 

Corp. 

Catonsville, MD January 3, 2011 January 2, 2014 

Immanuel 

Chambers, LLC 

Hyattsville, MD March 30, 2011 March 29, 2014 

Robinson Tax 

Services 

Hyattsville, MD March 30, 2011 March 29, 2014 

Kodilinye Ogonna 

Ojukwu 

Hyattsville, MD March 30, 2011 March 29, 2014 

Tetrazzini, Inc.  Hyattsville, MD April 5, 2011 April 4, 2014 

Botno, Inc.  Stockton, IL August 18, 2012  August 17, 2015   

Mississippi Valley 

Consulting Co., Inc.  

Rancho 

Cucamonga, CA 

August 18, 2012  August 17, 2015   

 

http://www.dol.gov/whd/immigration/H1BDebarment.htm


H-2A Temporary Agricultural Program 

 

The Office of Foreign Labor Certification maintains the list below of debarred employers 

from the H-2A Temporary Agricultural Program.  For more information on the 

debarments under the H-2A Program, see 20 CFR 655.182. 

 

H-2A Labor Certification Debarment List 

Employer Name Employer Location Start of 

Debarment 

End of Debarment 

Ahrens Farms 

Custom Harvesting 

 

Ravenna, Nebraska May 30, 2013 May 29, 2015 

Christopher Martin 

 

Lyons, Georgia May 30, 2013 May 29, 2015 

Westcott Sales and 

Service 

 

Hawkinsville, 

Georgia 

May 30, 2013 May 29, 2015 

Noble Farm DeWitt, Arkansas April 21, 2013 April 20, 2014 

Passarell Farms DBA 

Dale Passarell 

Holley, New York March 16, 2013 March 15, 2015 

Gordon Dhal Mantario, 

Saskatchewan, 

Canada 

March 16, 2013 March 15, 2015 

Jared Adrian Sod 

Service 

Sioux Falls, South 

Dakota 

March 16, 2013 March 15, 2015 

Fox Hill Farm Enfield, Connecticut March 16, 2013 March 15, 2015 

Caroline AG, Inc. Greenville, 

Mississippi 

March 8, 2013 March 7, 2014 

Margarita Cardenas 

 

 Lyons, Georgia  August 10, 2013 August 9, 2016 

JBO Harvesting, Inc. Lake Placid, Florida December 8, 2012 December 7, 2013 

Maria Perez Lyons, GA  November 16, 2012 November 15, 2013 

Beliaziere, Pierre Ashburn, GA  October 6, 2012 October 5, 2013 

RSF Harvesting 

Corporation/DBA 

Roger St Fleur  

Miami, Florida  September 21, 2012 September 20, 2013 

Tom Carr 

 

Carrington, North 

Dakota 

August 16, 2012 August 15, 2013 



Margarita Cardenas 

 

Lyons, Georgia August 11, 2012 August 10, 2013 

Neal Lemler Gettysburg, South 

Dakota 

August 11, 2012 August 10, 2013 

South Potato 

Harvesting LLC 

Daphne, Alabama  August 11, 2012 August 10, 2013 

Tex-Stein Dairy Windthorst, TX June 21, 2012 June 20, 2013 

Bullberry Ranches Circleville, UT June 22, 2012 June 21, 2013 

Chaffin White Louisville, KY June 22, 2012 June 21, 2013 

SWA Tobacco Southwick, MA June 7, 2012 June 6, 2014 

Donald W. Harlow Putney, VT June 8, 2012 June 7, 2014 

Wyatt Farms 

Greenhouse Nursery 

Benton, KY May 2, 2012 May 1, 2015 

Stephen Smith Farms DeRidder, LA May 18, 2012 May 17, 2014 

William Y. Gil, Inc.  Morgan Hill, CA April 8, 2012 April 7, 2014 

Travis Lambourn  Bowman, North 

Dakota  

July 20, 2011  July 19, 2013 

Global Horizons 

Manpower, Inc. 

Los Angeles, 

California 

May 6, 2011 May 6, 2014 

 

 

 

H-2B Temporary Non-Agricultural Program  

 

The Office of Foreign Labor Certification maintains the list below of debarred employers 

from the H-2B Temporary Non-Agricultural Program.  For more information on 

debarments under the H-2B Program, see 20 CFR 655.31. 

 

H-2B Labor Certification Debarment List  

Employer Name  Employer 

Location  

Start of 

Debarment  

End of 

Debarment  

G.E.M. Interiors, Inc. Milford, OH February 13, 

2013 

February 13, 

2016 

Ponderosa Reforestation, Inc. Medford, OR April 27, 2012 April 26, 2015 
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U.S. Department of Labor 
Employment and Training Administration  

OFFICE OF FOREIGN LABOR CERTIFICATION 
 

Program Debarments 
 
 
Wage and Hour Division Debarments Barring Participation in OFLC Programs 
 
The link below is to a list of employers debarred or disqualified by the Wage and Hour 
Division. The Office of Foreign Labor Certification, within the Employment and Training 
Administration, will not accept for filing any application or attestation submitted by these 
employers under 20 CFR Part 656 or 20 CFR subparts A, B, C, D, E, H, or I.  (See, 20 
CFR 655.750(d); 20 CFR 655.855(d).) 
 
http://www.dol.gov/whd/immigration/H1BDebarment.htm 
 
 
Permanent Labor Certification Program Debarments 
 
The Office of Foreign Labor Certification maintains the list below of debarred 
employers, attorneys, and/or agents from the Permanent Labor Certification Program. 
For more information on debarments under the Permanent Labor Certification Program, 
see 20 CFR 656.31(f). 
 

Permanent Labor Certification Debarment List 

Employer Name Employer Location Start of Debarment End of Debarment 

Botno, Inc. Stockton, IL August 18, 2012 August 17, 2015 
Mississippi Valley 
Consulting Co., Inc. 

Rancho 
Cucamonga, CA August 18, 2012 August 17, 2015 

 
  

http://www.dol.gov/whd/immigration/H1BDebarment.htm
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H-2A Temporary Agricultural Labor Certification Program Debarments 
 
The Office of Foreign Labor Certification maintains the list below of employers debarred 
from the H-2A Temporary Labor Certification Agricultural Program.  For more information 
on debarments under the H-2A Program, see 20 CFR 655.182. 
 

H-2A Labor Certification Debarment List 

Employer Name Employer Location Start of Debarment End of Debarment 

Macky and Brad 
Farms Plains, Texas February 13, 2015 February 12, 2016 

Peach Crest Farm 
LLC Stratford, Oklahoma February 10, 2015 February 9, 2018 

Cisco Produce, Inc. Cairo, Georgia December 10, 2014 December 9, 2016 

F & W Farms Ingalls, Kansas December 10, 2014 December 9, 2015 

Alteric Jean-Charles Fort Lauderdale, 
Florida December 6, 2014 December 5, 2015 

Old Tree 
Farm/Verpaalen 
Custom Service LLC 

Volga, South Dakota December 1, 2014 December 1, 2017 

Maple Ridge Custom 
Services LLC Altheimer, Arkansas November 16, 2014 November 15, 2015 

Mark Duncan Roosevelt, Utah November 16, 2014 November 15, 2016 

Sharon Mathis Tifton, Georgia November 16, 2014 November 15, 2016 

SRT Farms Morton, Texas November 16, 2014 November 15, 2016 

Slash EV Ranch LLP Rifle, Colorado November 15, 2014 November 14, 2015 

Caddo Creek Ranch, 
dba, Paradise Ranch Caddo, Texas July 20, 2014 July 19, 2016 

Loewen Harvesting 
LLC Brownfield, Texas August 20, 2014 August 19, 2015 

Reimer’s Inc.  Lakin, Kansas August 23, 2014 August 22, 2016 

Rolle Farm Labor 
Contractor Miami, Florida August 23, 2014 August 22, 2016 
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H-2A Labor Certification Debarment List 

Yolanda Chavez 
Farming 

Santa Maria, 
California July 23, 2014 July 22, 2015 

Autumn Hill Orchard Groton, 
Massachusetts  July 6, 2014 July 5, 2016 

Anton Fertilizer, Inc. Dighton, Kansas March 30, 2014 March 29, 2016 

Great Plains Fluid 
Service, Inc. Greensburg, Kansas March 30, 2014 March 29, 2016 

Annabella Land & 
Cattle Co LLC Annabella, Utah May 9, 2014 May 9, 2015 

Promax Inc. Whitewater, Kansas May 15, 2014 May 14, 2016 

Trust Nursery Pulaski, New York March 21, 2014 March 20, 2015 

Stahlman Apiaries, 
Inc. 

Selby,  
South Dakota February 15, 2014 February 14, 2016 

J & J Harvesting Leads, North 
Dakota January 19, 2014 January 18, 2016 

Wagner Farm East Windsor, 
Connecticut January 19, 2014 January 18, 2016 

Brian Durham Brodhead,  
Kentucky September 20, 2013 September 19, 2015 

S. Miller Livestock, 
LLC Manti, Utah September 20, 2013 September 19, 2015 

North Country 
Landscape 

Coxackie,  
New York September 20, 2013 September 19, 2015 

Odegard Harvesting Whitetail, Montana September 20, 2013 September 19, 2015 

DBJ Farms Homestead, 
Montana September 20, 2013 September 19, 2015 

Linda White & 
Associates, Inc. 

Livingston, 
Louisiana June 30, 2013 June 29, 2016 

Delta Ridge Ranch 
LLC Carenco, Louisiana June 29, 2013 June 28, 2016 

George Laprairie Jr. Jonesville, Louisiana June 29, 2013 June 28, 2016 

Goldmine Plantation Edgard, Louisiana June 29, 2013 June 28, 2016 
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H-2A Labor Certification Debarment List 

Ahrens Farms 
Custom Harvesting Ravenna, Nebraska May 30, 2013 May 29, 2015 

Christopher Martin Lyons, Georgia May 30, 2013 May 29, 2015 

Westcott Sales and 
Service 

Hawkinsville, 
Georgia May 30, 2013 May 29, 2015 

Passarell Farms DBA 
Dale Passarell Holley, New York March 16, 2013 March 15, 2015 

Gordon Dhal 
Mantario, 
Saskatchewan, 
Canada 

March 16, 2013 March 15, 2015 

Jared Adrian Sod 
Service 

Sioux Falls, South 
Dakota March 16, 2013 March 15, 2015 

Fox Hill Farm Enfield, Connecticut March 16, 2013 March 15, 2015 

Margarita Cardenas Lyons, Georgia August 10, 2013 August 9, 2016 

Wyatt Farms 
Greenhouse Nursery Benton, KY May 2, 2012 May 1, 2015 
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H-2B Temporary Non-Agricultural Labor Certification Program Debarments 
 
The Office of Foreign Labor Certification maintains a list below of debarred employers 
from the H-2B Temporary Non-Agricultural Labor Certification Program.  For more 
information on debarments under the H-2B Program, see 20 CFR 655.31. 
 

H-2B Labor Certification Debarment List 

Employer Name Employer Location Start of Debarment End of Debarment 

Jalisco Inc. D/B/A  
La Fiesta 

Plattsmouth, 
Nebraska January 22, 2015 January 21, 2017 

JAG Premier, Inc. New Orleans, 
Louisiana January 14, 2015 January 13, 2017 

Goobies Cotton Candy, 
LLC McAllen, Texas January 14, 2015 January 13, 2017 

JP Landscaping, Inc. Levittown, 
Pennsylvania January 14, 2015 January 13, 2017 

Fiesta Charra Dewitt, Michigan December 3, 2014 December 2, 2016 

Valley Industrial Coating, 
LLC Brownsville, Texas November 19, 2014 November 18, 2016 

Tarro de Oro Scottsboro, 
Alabama October 30, 2014 October 29, 2016 

Global Labor Services, 
LLC Brownsville, Texas October 30, 2014 October 29, 2016 

Mike Sabetta & Son 
Landscaping, Inc.  Wickliffe, Ohio September 16, 2014 September 15, 2016 

Bunkie Wood Products Bunkie, Louisiana September 4, 2014 September 3, 2016 

Stone Mountain, Inc. Brownsville, Texas September 4, 2014 September 3, 2016 

Kellystone, Inc. Elgin, Texas September 4, 2014 September 3, 2016 

Casper Guadalajara 
Operations, LLC DBA 
Guadalajara Restaurant 
Group 

Casper, Wyoming July 10, 2014 July 9, 2016 

Midway Rides of Utica Utica, New York May 16, 2014 May 15, 2015 

Buttermilk LLC d/b/a Bar 
N Ranch 

West Yellowstone, 
Montana May 9, 2014 May 8, 2015 

Universal Landscape 
Services 

New Braunfels, 
Texas May 29, 2014 May 28, 2016 

Verde Corporation Baltimore, Maryland May 4, 2014 May 3, 2015 
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H-2B Labor Certification Debarment List 

Myers International 
Midways, Inc. 

 

Gibsonton,  
Florida March 7, 2014 March 6, 2016 

Peter’s Fine Greek Foods, 
Inc. Astoria, New York February 26, 2014 February 25, 2015 

Pacheco Contracting LLC Warren,  
Arkansas January 22, 2014 January 21, 2016 

River Valley Forestry Russelville, 
Arkansas January 4, 2014 January 3, 2015 

Butler Creek Landscaping Trout Creek, 
Montana 

December 30, 
2013 

December 29, 
2015 

Gallegos Corporation Harvey, 
Louisiana 

December 30, 
2013 

December 29, 
2015 

Richard Vega Racing 
Stable 

Bensalem, 
Pennsylvania 

December 30, 
2013 

December 29, 
2015 

Sugar Bowl Restaurant Gaylord, 
Michigan 

December 30, 
2013 

December 29, 
2015 

Tri-State Gunite of New 
York 

Sloatsburg, New 
York 

December 30, 
2013 

December 29, 
2015 

Island Hills Golf Club Sayville, New 
York 

December 18, 
2013 

December 17, 
2015 

Ramnee Enterprises, LLC St. Petersburg, 
Florida 

November 15, 
2013 

November 14, 
2015 

Valentin Barrera d/b/a 
Val's Construction 

Fort Stockton, 
Texas 

November 15, 
2013 

November 14, 
2015 

Gonzalez Plumbing Brownsville, 
Texas 

November 15, 
2013 

November 14, 
2015 

Noriega Puente 
Construction 

Pflugerville, 
Texas October 2, 2013 October 1, 2015 

J Mario Lawn & 
Landscaping Sterling, Virginia October 2, 2013 October 1, 2015 

All U Need Remodeling, 
Inc. Lilburn, Georgia October 2, 2013 October 1, 2015 

Rolling Hills Country Club Paducah, 
Kentucky July 2, 2013 July 1, 2015 

Scotts Garden Center LLC Lexington, South 
Carolina July 3, 2013 July 2, 2015 

Green Three Landscaping 
Company 

Pflugerville, 
Texas July 2, 2013 July 1, 2015 

G.E.M. Interiors, Inc. Milford, OH February 13, 
2013 

February 13, 
2016 

Ponderosa 
Reforestation, Inc. Medford, OR April 27, 2012 April 26, 2015 
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Ineligible Farm Labor Contractors Under the Migrant and Seasonal Agricultural 
Worker Protection Act  
 
Under the Migrant and Seasonal Agricultural Worker Protection Act (MSPA), only a 
person holding a valid certificate of registration issued by the Secretary of Labor may 
engage in farm labor contracting activities. The Department’s Wage and Hour Division 
maintains a list of individuals who MAY NOT engage in any activity as a Farm Labor 
Contractor (FLC) or as a Farm Labor Contractor Employee (FLCE) as defined under 
MSPA. This list is updated on a continual basis and may be accessed here:  
http://www.dol.gov/whd/regs/statutes/mspa_debar.htm  

http://www.dol.gov/whd/regs/statutes/mspa_debar.htm


1 
 

U.S. Department of Labor 
Employment and Training Administration  

OFFICE OF FOREIGN LABOR CERTIFICATION 
 

Program Debarments 
 
 
Wage and Hour Division Debarments Barring Participation in OFLC Programs 

 
The link below is to a list of employers debarred or disqualified by the Wage and Hour 
Division. The Office of Foreign Labor Certification, within the Employment and Training 
Administration, will not accept for filing any application or attestation submitted by these 
employers under 20 CFR Part 656 or 20 CFR subparts A, B, C, D, E, H, or I.  (See, 20 
CFR 655.750(d); 20 CFR 655.855(d).) 

 
http://www.dol.gov/whd/immigration/H1BDebarment.htm 

 
 
Permanent Labor Certification Program Debarments 

 
The Office of Foreign Labor Certification maintains the list below of debarred 
employers, attorneys, and/or agents from the Permanent Labor Certification Program. 
For more information on debarments under the Permanent Labor Certification Program, 
see 20 CFR 656.31(f). 

 

Permanent Labor Certification Debarment List 

Employer Name Employer Location Start of Debarment End of Debarment 

    

    

 
  

http://www.dol.gov/whd/immigration/H1BDebarment.htm
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H-2A Temporary Agricultural Labor Certification Program Debarments 
 
The Office of Foreign Labor Certification maintains the list below of employers debarred 
from the H-2A Temporary Labor Certification Agricultural Program.  For more information 
on debarments under the H-2A Program, see 20 CFR 655.182. 
 

H-2A Labor Certification Debarment List 

Employer Name Employer Location Start of Debarment End of Debarment 

Todd Daulton Nancy, Kentucky March 13, 2016 March 12, 2018 

Olson Farms 
Douglas, North 
Dakota 

February 14, 2016 February 13, 2017 

M Keneston 
Corporation 

Rensselaer, New 
York 

December 31, 2015 December 30, 2017 

Landmark 
Landscaping 

Middletown, Maryland December 30, 2015 June 29, 2017 

Trinity Livestock 
Partnership 

Earth, Texas December 30, 2015 December 29, 2017 

David C. Martinez Lyons, Georgia December 17, 2015  December 16, 2017 

Leslie Renee Drew Lyons, Georgia December 17, 2015  December 16, 2017 

Cira Cortez Lopez 
Willacoochee, 
Georgia 

November 26, 2015 November 25, 2016 

Daneco, LLC Houma, Louisiana September 30, 2015 September 29, 2017 

Irish Flats Moctezuma, KS September 30, 2015 September 29, 2017 

Agecy I LLC Idabel, Oklahoma August 27, 2015 August 26, 2017 

John R. Cook Carlisle, Kentucky August 27, 2015 August 26, 2017 

Jenschke Farms Fredericksburg, TX August 7, 2015 August 7, 2018 

Leslie Cook Carlisle, Kentucky June 22, 2015 June 21, 2017 

Valley View Orchards Hebron, Maine July 22, 2015 July 21, 2017 



3 
 

H-2A Labor Certification Debarment List 

Chris Robinson Paint Lick, New York June 19, 2015 June 18, 2017 

Haiti/USA Workforce Miami, Florida June 19, 2015 June 18, 2017 

K & W Enterprises Albion, New York June 19, 2015 June 18, 2017 

Jeremy Chandler Climax, Minnesota June 19, 2015 June 18, 2017 

Leonard Smith Farms Miami, Florida June 19, 2015 June 18, 2017 

Ferrell Farms Hermitage, Arkansas May 5, 2015 May 5, 2018 

Altendorf Transport, 
Inc. 

 Minto, North Dakota April 24, 2015 April 23, 2017 

Peter Peters  Seminole, Texas April 24, 2015 April 23, 2017 

Glenda Harrod Farms  Hermitage, Arkansas April 15, 2015 April 14, 2016 

Agecy II LLC 
Ipswich, South 
Dakota 

March 25, 2015 March 24, 2017 

First American 
Holding 

Aubrey, Texas March 25, 2015 March 24, 2017 

City Pinestraw and 
Harvesting 

Baxley, Georgia April 11, 2015 April 10, 2016 

Louie M. Asumendi Nampa, Idaho March 11, 2015 March 10, 2017 

Geronimo Sheep Co. Vernal, Utah June 23, 2014 June 22, 2017 

Peach Crest Farm 
LLC 

Stratford, Oklahoma February 10, 2015 February 9, 2018 

Cisco Produce, Inc. Cairo, Georgia December 10, 2014 December 9, 2016 

Old Tree 
Farm/Verpaalen 
Custom Service LLC 

Volga, South Dakota December 1, 2014 December 1, 2017 

Mark Duncan Roosevelt, Utah November 16, 2014 November 15, 2016 



4 
 

H-2A Labor Certification Debarment List 

Sharon Mathis Tifton, Georgia November 16, 2014 November 15, 2016 

SRT Farms Morton, Texas November 16, 2014 November 15, 2016 

Caddo Creek Ranch, 
dba, Paradise Ranch 

Caddo, Texas July 20, 2014 July 19, 2016 

Reimer’s Inc.  Lakin, Kansas August 23, 2014 August 22, 2016 

Rolle Farm Labor 
Contractor 

Miami, Florida August 23, 2014 August 22, 2016 

Autumn Hill Orchard 
Groton, 
Massachusetts  

July 6, 2014 July 5, 2016 

Anton Fertilizer, Inc. Dighton, Kansas March 30, 2014 March 29, 2016 

Great Plains Fluid 
Service, Inc. 

Greensburg, Kansas March 30, 2014 March 29, 2016 

Promax Inc. Whitewater, Kansas May 15, 2014 May 14, 2016 

Linda White & 
Associates, Inc. 

Livingston, 
Louisiana 

June 30, 2013 June 29, 2016 

Delta Ridge Ranch 
LLC 

Carenco, Louisiana June 29, 2013 June 28, 2016 

George Laprairie Jr. Jonesville, Louisiana June 29, 2013 June 28, 2016 

Goldmine Plantation Edgard, Louisiana June 29, 2013 June 28, 2016 

Margarita Cardenas Lyons, Georgia August 10, 2013 August 9, 2016 
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H-2B Temporary Non-Agricultural Labor Certification Program Debarments 
 
The Office of Foreign Labor Certification maintains a list below of debarred employers 
from the H-2B Temporary Non-Agricultural Labor Certification Program.  For more 
information on debarments under the H-2B Program, see 20 CFR 655.31. 
 

H-2B Labor Certification Debarment List 

Employer Name Employer Location Start of Debarment End of Debarment 

El Tule Mexican/Peruvian 
Restaurant LLC d/b/a El 
Tule 

Lambertville, New 
Jersey 

April 25, 2015 April 24, 2017 

Julie’s Outdoor 
Enhancement & Design, 
Inc. 

Kill Devil Hills,  
North Carolina 

April 3, 2015 April 2, 2017 

La Jomac Group Houma, Louisiana  March 11, 2015 March 10, 2017 

White Pine Landscaping, 
LLC 

Bemidji, Minnesota February 18, 2015 February 17, 2017 

El Mazatlan, Inc.  Glasgow, Kentucky February 18, 2015 February 17, 2017 

Julie’s Cleaning Services, 
LLC 

Kill Devil Hills,  
North Carolina 

February 18, 2015 February 17, 2017 

Jalisco Inc. D/B/A  
La Fiesta 

Plattsmouth, 
Nebraska 

January 22, 2015 January 21, 2017 

JAG Premier, Inc. 
New Orleans, 
Louisiana 

January 14, 2015 January 13, 2017 

Goobies Cotton Candy, 
LLC 

McAllen, Texas January 14, 2015 January 13, 2017 

JP Landscaping, Inc. 
Levittown, 
Pennsylvania 

January 14, 2015 January 13, 2017 

Fiesta Charra Dewitt, Michigan December 3, 2014 December 2, 2016 

Valley Industrial Coating, 
LLC 

Brownsville, Texas November 19, 2014 November 18, 2016 

Tarro de Oro 
Scottsboro, 
Alabama 

October 30, 2014 October 29, 2016 

Global Labor Services, 
LLC 

Brownsville, Texas October 30, 2014 October 29, 2016 

Mike Sabetta & Son 
Landscaping, Inc.  

Wickliffe, Ohio September 16, 2014 September 15, 2016 

Bunkie Wood Products Bunkie, Louisiana September 4, 2014 September 3, 2016 
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H-2B Labor Certification Debarment List 

Stone Mountain, Inc. Brownsville, Texas September 4, 2014 September 3, 2016 

Kellystone, Inc. Elgin, Texas September 4, 2014 September 3, 2016 

Casper Guadalajara 
Operations, LLC DBA 
Guadalajara Restaurant 
Group 

Casper, Wyoming July 10, 2014 July 9, 2016 

Universal Landscape 
Services 

New Braunfels, 
Texas 

May 29, 2014 May 28, 2016 

Myers International 
Midways, Inc. 
Inc. 

Gibsonton,  
Florida 

March 7, 2014 March 6, 2016 

 
 

 
Ineligible Farm Labor Contractors Under the Migrant and Seasonal Agricultural 
Worker Protection Act  
 
Under the Migrant and Seasonal Agricultural Worker Protection Act (MSPA), only a 
person holding a valid certificate of registration issued by the Secretary of Labor may 
engage in farm labor contracting activities. The Department’s Wage and Hour Division 
maintains a list of individuals who MAY NOT engage in any activity as a Farm Labor 
Contractor (FLC) or as a Farm Labor Contractor Employee (FLCE) as defined under 
MSPA. This list is updated on a continual basis and may be accessed here:  
http://www.dol.gov/whd/regs/statutes/mspa_debar.htm  

http://www.dol.gov/whd/regs/statutes/mspa_debar.htm


Department of Labor 
Employment and Training Administration 
Office of Foreign Labor Certification 
Program Debarments 
 
 
Permanent Labor Certification Program 
 
The Office of Foreign Labor Certification maintains the list below of debarred 
employers, attorneys, and/or agents from the Permanent Labor Certification Program. For 
more information on debarments under the Permanent Labor Certification Program, see 
20 CFR 656.31(f). 
 

Permanent Labor Certification Debarment List 
Employer Name Employer Location Start of 

Debarment 
End of Debarment 

Corporate Horizons, 
Inc. 

Old Bridge, NJ September 29, 2009 September 29, 2012 

Ms. Sai Hyun Lee Duluth, GA March 18, 2010 March 17, 2013 
HR Prime, LLC Chapel Hill, NC October 15, 2010 October 14, 2013 
Outdoor Solutions Columbus, GA January 3, 2011 January 2, 2014 
Super Technologies 
Corp. 

Catonsville, MD January 3, 2011 January 2, 2014 

Immanuel 
Chambers, LLC 

Hyattsville, MD March 30, 2011 March 29, 2014 

Robinson Tax 
Services 

Hyattsville, MD March 30, 2011 March 29, 2014 

Kodilinye Ogonna 
Ojukwu 

Hyattsville, MD March 30, 2011 March 29, 2014 

Tetrazzini, Inc.  Hyattsville, MD April 5, 2011 April 4, 2014 
 



H-2A Temporary Agricultural Program 
 
The Office of Foreign Labor Certification maintains the list below of debarred employers 
from the H-2A Temporary Agricultural Program. For more information on the 
debarments under the H-2A Program, see 20 CFR 655.182 
 

H-2A Labor Certification Debarment List 
Employer Name Employer Location Start of 

Debarment 
End of Debarment 

William Y. Gil, Inc.  Morgan Hill, CA April 8, 2012 April 7, 2014 
Luis Alvarez Lyons, GA  December 3, 2011 December 2, 2012 
Juan Carrillo Lyons, GA December 3, 2011 December 2, 2012 
CC Benoit 
Companies LLC 

Church Point, LA   December 3, 2011 December 2, 2012 

Diamond T. Ranch Ephraim, UT   December 3, 2011 December 2, 2012 
Eagle Creek Farms, 
INC. 

Hermitage, AR     December 3, 2011 December 2, 2012 

East Coast Brokers 
and Packers, Inc. 

Parksley, VA   December 3, 2011 December 2, 2012 

Jody Fontenot 
Farms 

Ville Platte, LA   December 3, 2011 December 2, 2012 

Johnson’s Sheep 
Shearing LLC. 

Otto, WY     December 3, 2011 December 2, 2012 

Kevin Mutsch Faulkton, SD December 3, 2011 December 2, 2012 
Carl D. Scanlan Jr. Church Point, LA December 3, 2011 December 2, 2012 
Craig  Weigel Napoleon, ND     December 3, 2011 December 2, 2012 
Woodcliffe Farms, 
Inc. 

Truxton, MO     December 3, 2011 December 2, 2012 

A. Zimmerman & 
Sons 

Highland, NY December 3, 2011 December 2, 2012 

Travis Lambourn  Bowman, North 
Dakota  

July 20, 2011  July 19, 2013 

Ponderosa Land & 
Cattle LLC 

Texico, New 
Mexico  

June 17, 2011  June 16, 2012 

GF Farm, Inc. DBA 
Sand Creek Farm 

Cameron, Texas     June 17, 2011  June 16, 2012 

Greg & Lana 
Eichstadt 

Wolsey, South 
Dakota  

June 17, 2011  June 16, 2012 

Charles Haas DBA 
H&R Farms 

Willow City, Texas  June 17, 2011  June 16, 2012 

Trimco Nurseries Abingdon, 
Maryland 

June 17, 2011  June 16, 2012 

R&K Doyle 
Harvesting Ltd. 

Fort Macleod,  
Alberta Canada 

June 17, 2011  June 16, 2012 

Global Horizons 
Manpower, Inc. 

Los Angeles, 
California 

May 6, 2011 May 6, 2014 



Harold B. Blach Yuma, Colorado February 18, 2011 February 17, 2013 
Ochoa Farming Inc. Santa Maria, 

California 
February 18, 2011 February 17, 2013 

Mata Trucking Inc. Edinburg, Texas June 28, 2009 June 27, 2012 
 



 
H-2B Temporary Non-Agricultural Program  
 
The Office of Foreign Labor Certification maintains the list below of debarred employers 
from the H-2B Temporary Non-Agricultural Program.  For more information on 
debarments under the H-2B Program, see 20 CFR 655.31. 
 

H-2B Labor Certification Debarment List  

Employer Name  Employer 
Location  

Start of 
Debarment  

End of 
Debarment  

CD Quality Services 
Corporation 

Orlando, FL March 5, 2011 March 5, 2013 

Coast 2 Coast, Inc. Pasadena, TX March 5, 2011 March 5, 2013 

Concrete Designs, LLC. Garland, NE March 5, 2011 March 5, 2013 

Coral Cosmetics, LLC.  Dunbar, WV March 5, 2011 March 5, 2013 

Holiday Inn Express Hotel Latham, NY March 5, 2011 March 5, 2013 

 
 
 
 
 
H-1B Temporary Workers in Specialty Occupations 
 
Below is a link to employers debarred or disqualified by the Wage and Hour Division 
under the H-1B Program: 
 
http://www.dol.gov/whd/immigration/H1BDebarment.htm 
 

http://www.dol.gov/whd/immigration/H1BDebarment.htm


 

U.S. Department of Labor 
Employment and Training Administration 

OFFICE OF FOREIGN LABOR CERTIFICATION 
 

Program Debarments 
 

Wage and Hour Division Debarments Barring Participation in OFLC Programs 
 

The link below is to a list of employers debarred or disqualified by the Wage and Hour Division. The Office of Foreign Labor Certification, within the 
Employment and Training Administration, will not accept for filing any application or attestation submitted by these employers under 20 CFR Part 656 or 
20 CFR subparts A, B, C, D, E, H, or I. (See, 20 CFR 655.750(d); 20 CFR 655.855(d).) 

 
http://www.dol.gov/whd/immigration/H1BDebarment.htm 

 

Permanent Labor Certification Program Debarments 
 

The Office of Foreign Labor Certification maintains the list below of debarred employers, attorneys, and/or agents from the Permanent Labor Certification 
Program. For more information on debarments under the Permanent Labor Certification Program, see 20 CFR 656.31(f). 

 

Permanent Labor Certification Debarment List 

Entity Entity Type Employer Location Start of Debarment End of Debarment Violation CFR Citation 

George’s Chicken, LLC Employer Harrisonburg, Virginia December 19, 2017 December 19, 2020 Failure to respond to audit 
quest 

20 CFR §§ 656.20 and 
6.31(f)(1)(iv) 

George’s Processing, Inc Employer Fayetteville, Arkansas December 19, 2017 December 19, 2020 Failure to respond to audit 
quest 

20 CFR §§ 656.20 and 
6.31(f)(1)(iv) 

Global Infotech Inc Employer Schaumburg, Illinois March 27, 2017 March 27, 2020 Failure to respond to audit 
quest 

20 CFR §§ 656.20 and 
6.31(f)(1)(iv) 

Ms. Hee Jung Jenny Shin Attorney Fairfax Station, Virginia May 12, 2017 May 12, 2020 Fraud or willful 
srepresentation 

20 CFR §§ 656.20 and 
6.31(f)(1)(iv) 

Savvy Info Systems Inc Employer Schaumburg, Illinois May 9, 2017 May 9, 2020 Failure to respond to audit 
quest 

20 CFR §§ 656.20 and 
6.31(f)(1)(iv) 

http://www.dol.gov/whd/immigration/H1BDebarment.htm


 

H-2A Temporary Agricultural Labor Certification Program Debarments 
 

The Office of Foreign Labor Certification maintains the list below of employers debarred from the H-2A Temporary Labor Certification 
Agricultural Program. For more information on debarments under the H-2A Program, see 20 CFR 655.182. 

 
H-2A Labor Certification Debarment List 

Employer Name Employer Location Start of Debarment End of Debarment Violation CFR Citation 

69 Farms LLC Preston, Idaho September 24, 2016 September 23, 2018 Failure to respond to 
audit request 

20 CFR 
§655.182(d)(1)(vi) and 
(e)(3) 

AB Ranch Stephenville, Texas April 28, 2017 April 27, 2019 Failure to respond to 
audit request 

20 CFR 
§655.182(d)(1)(vi) and 
(e)(3) (e)(3) 

B & R Harvesting (company) 
and Paul Cruz (individual)* 

Collins, Georgia April 9, 2017 April 9, 2020 WHD referral  

Bartolo Hernandez* Lyons, Georgia January 10, 2018 January 10, 2021 WHD referral  

C Hanging L Ranch LLP Choteau, Montana April 10, 2016 April 11, 2018 Failure to respond to 
audit request 

20 CFR 
§655.182(d)(1)(vi) and 
(e)(3) 

Cathy Knecht dba Liberty 
Immigration* 

Plentywood, Montana June 16, 2017 June 16, 2020 WHD referral  

County Fair Farm (company) 
and Andrew Williamson 
(individual)* 

Jefferson, Maine March 8, 2017 March 8, 2020 WHD referral  

David Jackson S. Deerfield, 
Massachusetts 

January 12, 2017 January 11, 2019 Failure to respond to 
audit request 

20 CFR 
§655.182(d)(1)(vi) and 
(e)(3) 



 

H-2A Labor Certification Debarment List 

Employer Name Employer Location Start of Debarment End of Debarment Violation CFR Citation 

Delia Rojas* Lyons, Georgia April 14, 2017 April 14, 2020 WHD referral  

Denton L. Cook / 
Cook Farms* 

Chatham, Virginia October 11, 2017 October 11, 2020 WHD referral  

Dove Creek Farms Mount Vernon, Texas February 9, 2018 February 8, 2020 Failure to respond to 
audit request 

20 CFR 
§655.182(d)(1)(vi) and 
(e)(3) 

Employment USA, LLC and 
Kevin Opp* 

Aberdeen, South 
Dakota 

September 1, 2015 August 31, 2018 WHD referral  

Evergreen Produce Adel, Georgia October 29, 2017 October 29, 2019 Failure to comply 
with the employer's 
obligations to recruit 
U.S. workers 

655.182(d)(1)(iii) 

Ferrell Farms* Hermitage, Arkansas May 5, 2015 May 5, 2018 WHD referral  

German Farms Fullerton, North Dakota August 5, 2016 August 4, 2018 Failure to respond to 
audit request 

20 CFR 
§655.182(d)(1)(vi) and 
(e)(3) 

Gonzalo Fernandez* Watsonville, California August 25, 2016 August 24, 2019 WHD referral  

Hancock Citrus Harvesting, 
LLC * 

Dade City, Florida September 4, 2017 September 4, 2020 WHD referral  

Jenschke Farms* Fredericksburg, Texas August 7, 2015 August 7, 2018 WHD referral  



 

H-2A Labor Certification Debarment List 

Employer Name Employer Location Start of Debarment End of Debarment Violation CFR Citation 

Jessica Carreon* Quitman, Georgia July 27, 2017 July 27, 2020 WHD referral  

Jesus Ledesma Mulberry, Florida March 2, 2018 March 1, 2020 Failure to respond to 
audit request 

20 CFR 
§655.182(d)(1)(vi) and 
(e)(3) (e)(3) 

Jim and Ann Shipley William 
Shipley* 

Speedwell, Tennessee May 6, 2016 May 5, 2019 WHD referral  

 

John & Neta Leopky Farms 

 

Seminole, Texas 

 

July 21, 2016 

 

July 20, 2018 

A violation of the 
requirements of § 
655.135(j) or (k) 

20 CFR § 
655.182(d)(1)(viii) 

John Hudson Farms Inc, dba 
John Hudson Farms 
(company) and Phillip L. 
Hudson (individual)* 

Newton Grove, North 
Carolina 

June 30, 2017 June 30, 2020 WHD referral  

LOV Ranch Co, LLLP dba 
LOV Ranch* 

Rifle, Colorado January 31, 2018 January 20, 2019 WHD referral  

Monica Saavedra (Agent) Douglas, Georgia October 29, 2017 October 29, 2019 Failure to comply 
with the employer's 
obligations to recruit 
U.S. workers 

655.182(d)(1)(iii) 

Nemorio Resendiz Moultrie, Georgia April 28, 2017 April 27, 2019 Failure to respond to 
audit request 

20 CFR 
§655.182(d)(1)(vi) and 
(e)(3) (e)(3) 

REB Cane Creek Farms, Inc 
dba REB Cane Creek Farms* 

Vardaman, Mississippi September 9, 2017 September 9, 2020 WHD referral  



 

H-2A Labor Certification Debarment List 

Employer Name Employer Location Start of Debarment End of Debarment Violation CFR Citation 

Rosalva Garcia Dade City, Florida July 27, 2016 June 27, 2018 Failure to respond to 
audit request 

20 CFR 
§655.182(d)(1)(vi) and 
(e)(3) 

Ruben Ruiz (DeSoto 
Harvesting)* 

Arcadia, Florida October 8, 2016 October 8, 2019 WHD referral  

Saxtons River Orchards, Inc. Saxtons River, Vermont July 9, 2016 July 8, 2018 Failure to respond to 
audit request 

20 CFR 
§655.182(d)(1)(vi) and 
(e)(3) 

Travis and Tara Lambourn Bowman, North Dakota December 9, 2016 December 9, 2018 Failure to respond to 
audit request 

20 CFR 
§655.182(d)(1)(vi) and 
(e)(3) 

Travis and Tara Lambourn 
dba Lambourn Farm* 

Bowman, North Dakota July 5, 2017 July 5, 2020 WHD referral  

Triangle J Farms Seminole, Texas July 21, 2016 July 20, 2018 Failure to pay or 
provide the required 

20 CFR 655.182(d)(1)(i) 

Vern Stratton Farms Orem, Utah September 24, 2016 September 24, 2018 Failure to respond to 
audit request 

20 CFR 
§655.182(d)(1)(vi) and 
(e)(3) 

Xavier Horne Lyons, Georgia September 27, 2017 September 26, 2019 Failure to respond to 
audit request 20 CFR 

§655.182(d)(1)(vi) and 
(e)(3) (e)(3) 

Yesenia Perez Axson, Georgia September 27, 2017 September 26, 2019 Failure to respond to 
audit request 20 CFR 

§655.182(d)(1)(vi) and 
(e)(3) (e)(3) 

Christopher L. Smith Farms Glasgow, Kentucky March 29, 2018 March 29, 2021 WHD Referral   

 

* Wage and Hour Division Debarment: Please direct inquiries to the Wage and Hour Division for further information. 



 
 

H-2B Temporary Non-Agricultural Labor Certification Program Debarments 
 

The Office of Foreign Labor Certification maintains a list below of debarred employers from the H-2B Temporary Non-Agricultural 
Labor Certification Program. For more information on debarments under the H-2B Program, see 20 CFR 655.31. 

 

H-2B Labor Certification Debarment List 

Employer Name Employer Location Start of Debarment End of Debarment Violation CFR Citation 

Clarke’s Landscaping and 
Lawn Care, Inc.** Telford, 

Pennsylvania 

November 9, 2017 November 9, 2022 OIG referral  

 
Ineligible Farm Labor Contractors Under the Migrant and Seasonal Agricultural Worker Protection Act 

 
Under the Migrant and Seasonal Agricultural Worker Protection Act (MSPA), only a person holding a valid certificate of registration 
issued by the Secretary of Labor may engage in farm labor contracting activities. The Department’s Wage and Hour Division 
maintains a list of individuals who MAY NOT engage in any activity as a Farm Labor Contractor (FLC) or as a Farm Labor 
Contractor Employee (FLCE) as defined under MSPA. This list is updated on a continual basis and may be accessed here: 
http://www.dol.gov/whd/regs/statutes/mspa_debar.htm 

 
 
 

**Department of Labor, Office of Inspector General (OIG) investigative findings: Please direct inquiries to the Department of Labor’s 
Office of Inspectors General for further information. 

http://www.dol.gov/whd/regs/statutes/mspa_debar.htm


Department of Labor 

Employment and Training Administration 

Office of Foreign Labor Certification 

Program Debarments 

 

 

Wage and Hour Division Debarments of OFLC Programs 

 

The link below is to employers debarred or disqualified by the Wage and Hour Division.  

The Office of Foreign Labor Certification, within the Employment and Training 

Administration, will not accept for filing any application or attestation submitted by these 

employers under 20 CFR Part 656 or 20 CFR subparts A, B, C, D, E, H, or I.  (See 20 

CFR 655.750(d); 20 CFR 655.855(d)) 

 

http://www.dol.gov/whd/immigration/H1BDebarment.htm 

 

 

 

Permanent Labor Certification Program 

 

The Office of Foreign Labor Certification maintains the list below of debarred 

employers, attorneys, and/or agents from the Permanent Labor Certification Program. For 

more information on debarments under the Permanent Labor Certification Program, see 

20 CFR 656.31(f). 

 

Permanent Labor Certification Debarment List 

Employer Name Employer Location Start of 

Debarment 

End of Debarment 

Outdoor Solutions Columbus, GA January 3, 2011 January 2, 2014 

Super Technologies 

Corp. 

Catonsville, MD January 3, 2011 January 2, 2014 

Immanuel 

Chambers, LLC 

Hyattsville, MD March 30, 2011 March 29, 2014 

Robinson Tax 

Services 

Hyattsville, MD March 30, 2011 March 29, 2014 

Kodilinye Ogonna 

Ojukwu 

Hyattsville, MD March 30, 2011 March 29, 2014 

Tetrazzini, Inc.  Hyattsville, MD April 5, 2011 April 4, 2014 

Botno, Inc.  Stockton, IL August 18, 2012  August 17, 2015   

Mississippi Valley 

Consulting Co., Inc.  

Rancho 

Cucamonga, CA 

August 18, 2012  August 17, 2015   

 

http://www.dol.gov/whd/immigration/H1BDebarment.htm


H-2A Temporary Agricultural Program 

 

The Office of Foreign Labor Certification maintains the list below of debarred employers 

from the H-2A Temporary Agricultural Program.  For more information on the 

debarments under the H-2A Program, see 20 CFR 655.182. 

 

H-2A Labor Certification Debarment List 

Employer Name Employer Location Start of 

Debarment 

End of Debarment 

Brian Durham Brodhead, Kentucky September 20, 2013 September 19, 2015 

Douglas Meyers 

Farms 

Grand View, Idaho September 20, 2013 September 19, 2015 

S. Miller Livestock, 

LLC 

Manti, Utah September 20, 2013 September 19, 2015 

North Country 

Landscape 

Coxackie, New York September 20, 2013 September 19, 2015 

Odegard Harvesting Whitetail, Montana September 20, 2013 September 19, 2015 

DBJ Farms Homestead, Montana September 20, 2013 September 19, 2015 

Derk Price Jensen, Utah September 20, 2013 September 19, 2014 

Mardi Farming, LLC Santa Maria, 

California 

August 18, 2013 August 17, 2014 

Maria Patricio Douglas, Georgia August 18, 2013 August 17, 2014 

Three Sisters Farms 

Services, Inc.  

Ashburn, Georgia August 3, 2013 August 2, 2014 

Linda White & 

Associates, Inc.  

Livingston, 

Louisiana 

June 30, 2013 June 29, 2016 

Delta Ridge Ranch 

LLC 

Carenco, Louisiana June 29, 2013 June 28, 2016 

George Laprairie Jr. Jonesville, Louisiana  June 29, 2013 June 28, 2016 

Goldmine Plantation  Edgard, Louisiana June 29, 2013 June 28, 2016 

Corn & Chilly Farm 

LLC 

West Jordan, Utah June 16, 2013 June 15, 2014 

Dorame Farms Inc.  Mohave Valley, 

Arizona 

June 16, 2013 June 15, 2014 



Ahrens Farms 

Custom Harvesting 

 

Ravenna, Nebraska May 30, 2013 May 29, 2015 

Christopher Martin 

 

Lyons, Georgia May 30, 2013 May 29, 2015 

Westcott Sales and 

Service 

 

Hawkinsville, 

Georgia 

May 30, 2013 May 29, 2015 

Passarell Farms DBA 

Dale Passarell 

Holley, New York March 16, 2013 March 15, 2015 

Gordon Dhal Mantario, 

Saskatchewan, 

Canada 

March 16, 2013 March 15, 2015 

Jared Adrian Sod 

Service 

Sioux Falls, South 

Dakota 

March 16, 2013 March 15, 2015 

Fox Hill Farm Enfield, Connecticut March 16, 2013 March 15, 2015 

Caroline AG, Inc. Greenville, 

Mississippi 

March 8, 2013 March 7, 2014 

Margarita Cardenas 

 

 Lyons, Georgia  August 10, 2013 August 9, 2016 

JBO Harvesting, Inc. Lake Placid, Florida December 8, 2012 December 7, 2013 

Maria Perez Lyons, GA  November 16, 2012 November 15, 2013 

Beliaziere, Pierre Ashburn, GA  October 6, 2012 October 5, 2013 

SWA Tobacco Southwick, MA June 7, 2012 June 6, 2014 

Donald W. Harlow Putney, VT June 8, 2012 June 7, 2014 

Wyatt Farms 

Greenhouse Nursery 

Benton, KY May 2, 2012 May 1, 2015 

Stephen Smith Farms DeRidder, LA May 18, 2012 May 17, 2014 

William Y. Gil, Inc.  Morgan Hill, CA April 8, 2012 April 7, 2014 

Global Horizons 

Manpower, Inc. 

Los Angeles, 

California 

May 6, 2011 May 6, 2014 

 

 

H-2B Temporary Non-Agricultural Program  

 

The Office of Foreign Labor Certification maintains the list below of debarred employers 

from the H-2B Temporary Non-Agricultural Program.  For more information on 

debarments under the H-2B Program, see 20 CFR 655.31. 

 



H-2B Labor Certification Debarment List  

Employer Name  Employer 

Location  

Start of 

Debarment  

End of 

Debarment  

Rolling Hills Country Club Paducah, 

Kentucky 

July 2, 2013 July 1, 2015 

Scotts Garden Center LLC Lexington, South 

Carolina 

July 3, 2013 July 2, 2015 

Green Three Landscaping 

Company 

Pflugerville, 

Texas 

July 2, 2013 July 1, 2015 

G.E.M. Interiors, Inc. Milford, OH February 13, 

2013 

February 13, 

2016 

Ponderosa Reforestation, Inc. Medford, OR April 27, 2012 April 26, 2015 
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U.S. Department of Labor 
Employment and Training Administration 

OFFICE OF FOREIGN LABOR CERTIFICATION 
 

Program Debarments 
 

 

Wage and Hour Division Debarments Barring Participation in OFLC Programs 
 

The link below is to a list of employers debarred or disqualified by the Wage and Hour 
Division. The Office of Foreign Labor Certification, within the Employment and Training 
Administration, will not accept for filing any application or attestation submitted by these 
employers under 20 CFR Part 656 or 20 CFR subparts A, B, C, D, E, H, or I.  (See, 20 
CFR 655.750(d); 20 CFR 655.855(d).) 

 
http://www.dol.gov/whd/immigration/H1BDebarment.htm 

 

 

Permanent Labor Certification Program Debarments 
 

The Office of Foreign Labor Certification maintains the list below of debarred 
employers, attorneys, and/or agents from the Permanent Labor Certification Program. 
For more information on debarments under the Permanent Labor Certification Program, 
see 20 CFR 656.31(f). 

 

Permanent Labor Certification Debarment List 

Employer Name Employer Location Start of Debarment End of Debarment 

    

    

http://www.dol.gov/whd/immigration/H1BDebarment.htm
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H-2A Temporary Agricultural Labor Certification Program Debarments 
 

The Office of Foreign Labor Certification maintains the list below of employers debarred 
from the H-2A Temporary Labor Certification Agricultural Program.  For more information 
on debarments under the H-2A Program, see 20 CFR 655.182. 

 

 

 

H-2A Labor Certification Debarment List 

Employer Name Employer Location Start of 
Debarment 

End of Debarment 

  Vern Stratton Farms Orem, Utah September 24, 
2016 

September 24, 2018 

  Avoyelles Honey Co., LLC Moreauville, Louisiana September 11, 
2016 

September 11, 2017 

  Javier Xisto Zapata Lyons, Georgia October 22, 2016 October 21, 2017 

  Deal Family Farm Franklin, North Carolina October 22, 2016 October 21, 2017 

  Rafael Barajas Sebring, Florida September 23, 2016 September 22, 2017 

  Gonzalo Fernandez* 
 
Watsonville, California  August 25, 2016  August 24, 2019 

  Donna Lucio Lyons, Georgia  August 25, 2016  August 24, 2017 

German Farms 
Fullerton, North Dakota  August 5, 2016 August 4, 2018 

Rosalva Garcia 
Dade City, Florida July 27, 2016 June 27, 2018 

Melvin Don Underwood II Marion, Arkansas July 22, 2016 July 21, 2017 

Quentin Schell Towner, North Dakota  July 22, 2016 July 21, 2017 

Xavier Horne Lyons, Georgia June 16, 2016 June 15, 2017 

Jim and Ann Shipley 
William Shipley 

Speedwell, 
Tennessee 

May 6, 2016 May 5, 2019 

Belinowski Ranch Anderson, Texas April 30, 2016 April 29, 2017 

Hargrove AG 
Partnership 

Dewitt, Arkansas April 25, 2016 April 24, 2017 
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H-2A Labor Certification Debarment List 

Roberto Vasquez Lake Placid, Florida April 25, 2016 April 24, 2017 

C Hanging L Ranch LLP 
Choteau, Montana April 10, 2016 April 11, 2018 

Robert D. Towles Worthville, Kentucky April 2, 2016 April 1, 2017 

Todd Daulton Nancy, Kentucky March 13, 2016 March 12, 2018 

Omega Lamb LLC El Centro, California  March 4, 2016 March 3, 2017 

Myrka Mireya 
Cardenas 

Lyons, Georgia March 4, 2016 March 3, 2017 

Olson Farms 
Douglas, North Dakota February 14, 2016 February 14, 2017 

M Keneston 
Corporation 

Rensselaer, New York December 31, 2015 December 20, 2017 

Landmark 
Landscaping 

Middletown, Maryland December 30, 2015 June 29, 2017 

Trinity Livestock 
Partnership 

Earth, Texas December 30, 2015 December 29, 2017 

David C. Martinez Lyons, Georgia December 17, 2015 December 16, 2017 

Leslie Renee Drew Lyons, Georgia December 17, 2015 December 16, 2017 

Cira Cortez Lopez 
Willacoochee, 
Georgia 

November 26, 2015 November 25, 2016 

Daneco, LLC Houma, Louisiana September 30, 2015 September 29, 2017 

Irish Flats Moctezuma, Kansas September 30, 2015 September 29, 2017 

Agecy I LLC Idabel, Oklahoma August 27, 2015 August 26, 2017 

John R. Cook Carlisle, Kentucky August 27, 2015 August 26, 2017 
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H-2A Labor Certification Debarment List 

Jenschke Farms* Fredericksburg, Texas August 7, 2015 August 7, 2018 

Leslie Cook Carlisle, Kentucky June 22, 2015 June 21, 2017 

Valley View Orchards Hebron, Maine July 22, 2015 July 21, 2017 

Chris Robinson Paint Lick, New York June 19, 2015 June 18, 2017 

Haiti/USA Workforce Miami, Florida June 19, 2015 June 18, 2017 

K & W Enterprises Albion, New York June 19, 2015 June 18, 2017 

Jeremy Chandler Climax, Minnesota June 19, 2015 June 18, 2017 

Leonard Smith Farms Miami, Florida June 19, 2015 June 18, 2017 

Ferrell Farms* Hermitage, Arkansas May 5, 2015 May 5, 2018 

Altendorf Transport, Inc. 
Minto, North Dakota April 24, 2015 April 23, 2017 

Peter Peters Seminole, Texas April 24, 2015 April 23, 2017 

Agecy II LLC 
Ipswich, South 
Dakota 

March 25, 2015 March 24, 2017 

First American 
Holding 

Aubrey, Texas March 25, 2015 March 24, 2017 

Louie M. Asumendi 
 
Nampa, Idaho March 11, 2015 March 10, 2017 

Fernandez Farms
*
 

 
Watsonville, California December 2, 2014 December 1, 2017 

Geronimo Sheep Co.* 
 
Vernal, Utah June 23, 2014 June 22, 2017 

Peach Crest Farm 
LLC* 

 
Stratford, Oklahoma February 10, 2015 February 9, 2018 

Cisco Produce, Inc. 
 
Cairo, Georgia December 10, 2014 December 9, 2016 

Old Tree Farm/Verpaalen 
Custom Service LLC* 

  
Volga, South Dakota 

 
December 1, 2014 

 
December 1, 2017 



5  

Mark Duncan  
 
Roosevelt, Utah November 16, 2014 November 15, 2016 

Sharon Mathis 
 
Tifton, Georgia November 16, 2014 November 15, 2016 

SRT Farms 
 
Morton, Texas November 16, 2014 November 15, 2016 

 

 
 
 
* Wage and Hour Division Debarment:    Please direct inquiries to the Wage and Hour Division.   
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H-2B Temporary Non-Agricultural Labor Certification Program Debarments 
 

The Office of Foreign Labor Certification maintains a list below of debarred employers 
from the H-2B Temporary Non-Agricultural Labor Certification Program. For more 
information on debarments under the H-2B Program, see 20 CFR 655.31. 

 

H-2B Labor Certification Debarment List 

Employer Name Employer Location Start of Debarment End of Debarment 

El Tule Mexican/Peruvian 
Restaurant LLC d/b/a El 
Tule 

Lambertville, New 
Jersey 

 
April 25, 2015 

 
April 24, 2017 

Julie’s Outdoor 
Enhancement & Design, 
Inc. 

Kill Devil Hills, 
North Carolina 

 
April 3, 2015 

 
April 2, 2017 

La Jomac Group Houma, Louisiana March 11, 2015 March 10, 2017 

White Pine Landscaping, 
LLC 

Bemidji, Minnesota February 18, 2015 February 17, 2017 

El Mazatlan, Inc. Glasgow, Kentucky February 18, 2015 February 17, 2017 

Julie’s Cleaning Services, 
LLC 

Kill Devil Hills, 
North Carolina 

February 18, 2015 February 17, 2017 

Jalisco Inc. D/B/A 
La Fiesta 

Plattsmouth, 
Nebraska 

January 22, 2015 January 21, 2017 

JAG Premier, Inc. 
New Orleans, 
Louisiana 

January 14, 2015 January 13, 2017 

Goobies Cotton Candy, 
LLC 

McAllen, Texas January 14, 2015 January 13, 2017 

JP Landscaping, Inc. 
Levittown, 
Pennsylvania 

January 14, 2015 January 13, 2017 

Fiesta Charra Dewitt, Michigan December 3, 2014 December 2, 2016 

Valley Industrial Coating, 
LLC 

Brownsville, Texas November 19, 2014 November 18, 2016 
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Ineligible Farm Labor Contractors Under the Migrant and Seasonal Agricultural 
Worker Protection Act 

 

Under the Migrant and Seasonal Agricultural Worker Protection Act (MSPA), only a 
person holding a valid certificate of registration issued by the Secretary of Labor may 
engage in farm labor contracting activities. The Department’s Wage and Hour Division 
maintains a list of individuals who MAY NOT engage in any activity as a Farm Labor 
Contractor (FLC) or as a Farm Labor Contractor Employee (FLCE) as defined under 
MSPA. This list is updated on a continual basis and may be accessed here:  
http://www.dol.gov/whd/regs/statutes/mspa_debar.htm 

http://www.dol.gov/whd/regs/statutes/mspa_debar.htm


Department of Labor 
Employment and Training Administration 
Office of Foreign Labor Certification 
Program Debarments 
 
 
Wage and Hour Division Debarments of OFLC Programs 
 
The link below is to employers debarred or disqualified by the Wage and Hour Division.  
The Office of Foreign Labor Certification, within the Employment and Training 
Administration, will not accept for filing any application or attestation submitted by these 
employers under 20 CFR Part 656 or 20 CFR subparts A, B, C, D, E, H, or I.  (See 20 
CFR 655.750(d); 20 CFR 655.855(d)) 
 
http://www.dol.gov/whd/immigration/H1BDebarment.htm 
 
 
 
Permanent Labor Certification Program 
 
The Office of Foreign Labor Certification maintains the list below of debarred 
employers, attorneys, and/or agents from the Permanent Labor Certification Program. For 
more information on debarments under the Permanent Labor Certification Program, see 
20 CFR 656.31(f). 
 

Permanent Labor Certification Debarment List 
Employer Name Employer Location Start of 

Debarment 
End of Debarment 

Ms. Sai Hyun Lee Duluth, GA March 18, 2010 March 17, 2013 
HR Prime, LLC Chapel Hill, NC October 15, 2010 October 14, 2013 
Outdoor Solutions Columbus, GA January 3, 2011 January 2, 2014 
Super Technologies 
Corp. 

Catonsville, MD January 3, 2011 January 2, 2014 

Immanuel 
Chambers, LLC 

Hyattsville, MD March 30, 2011 March 29, 2014 

Robinson Tax 
Services 

Hyattsville, MD March 30, 2011 March 29, 2014 

Kodilinye Ogonna 
Ojukwu 

Hyattsville, MD March 30, 2011 March 29, 2014 

Tetrazzini, Inc.  Hyattsville, MD April 5, 2011 April 4, 2014 
 

http://www.dol.gov/whd/immigration/H1BDebarment.htm


H-2A Temporary Agricultural Program 
 
The Office of Foreign Labor Certification maintains the list below of debarred employers 
from the H-2A Temporary Agricultural Program.  For more information on the 
debarments under the H-2A Program, see 20 CFR 655.182. 
 

H-2A Labor Certification Debarment List 
Employer Name Employer Location Start of 

Debarment 
End of Debarment 

Beliaziere, Pierre Ashburn, GA  October 6, 2012 October 5, 2013 

RSF Harvesting 
Corporation/DBA 
Roger St Fleur  

Miami, Florida  September 21, 2012 September 20, 2013 

Tom Carr 
 

Carrington, North 
Dakota 

August 16, 2012 August 15, 2013 

Margarita Cardenas 
 

Lyons, Georgia August 11, 2012 August 10, 2013 

Neal Lemler Gettysburg, South 
Dakota 

August 11, 2012 August 10, 2013 

South Potato 
Harvesting LLC 

Daphne, Alabama  August 11, 2012 August 10, 2013 

Tex-Stein Dairy Windthorst, TX June 21, 2012 June 20, 2013 
Bullberry Ranches Circleville, UT June 22, 2012 June 21, 2013 
Chaffin White Louisville, KY June 22, 2012 June 21, 2013 
SWA Tobacco Southwick, MA June 7, 2012 June 6, 2013 
S & S Farms Bay City, TX June 7, 2012 June 6, 2013 
W.R.K., INC. D.B.A. 
Texas Farm Stores 

Uvalde, TX June 7, 2012 June 6, 2013 

Donald W. Harlow Putney, VT June 8, 2012 June 7, 2014 
Wyatt Farms 
Greenhouse Nursery 

Benton, KY May 2, 2012 May 1, 2015 

Stephen Smith Farms DeRidder, LA May 18, 2012 May 17, 2014 
William Y. Gil, Inc.  Morgan Hill, CA April 8, 2012 April 7, 2014 
Luis Alvarez Lyons, GA  December 3, 2011 December 2, 2012 
Juan Carrillo Lyons, GA December 3, 2011 December 2, 2012 
CC Benoit 
Companies LLC 

Church Point, LA   December 3, 2011 December 2, 2012 

Diamond T. Ranch Ephraim, UT   December 3, 2011 December 2, 2012 
Eagle Creek Farms, 
INC. 

Hermitage, AR     December 3, 2011 December 2, 2012 

East Coast Brokers 
and Packers, Inc. 

Parksley, VA   December 3, 2011 December 2, 2012 

Jody Fontenot 
Farms 

Ville Platte, LA   December 3, 2011 December 2, 2012 

Johnson’s Sheep Otto, WY     December 3, 2011 December 2, 2012 



Shearing LLC. 
Kevin Mutsch Faulkton, SD December 3, 2011 December 2, 2012 
Carl D. Scanlan Jr. Church Point, LA December 3, 2011 December 2, 2012 
Craig  Weigel Napoleon, ND     December 3, 2011 December 2, 2012 
Woodcliffe Farms, 
Inc. 

Truxton, MO     December 3, 2011 December 2, 2012 

Travis Lambourn  Bowman, North 
Dakota  

July 20, 2011  July 19, 2013 

Global Horizons 
Manpower, Inc. 

Los Angeles, 
California 

May 6, 2011 May 6, 2014 

Harold B. Blach Yuma, Colorado February 18, 2011 February 17, 2013 
Ochoa Farming Inc. Santa Maria, 

California 
February 18, 2011 February 17, 2013 

 
H-2B Temporary Non-Agricultural Program  
 
The Office of Foreign Labor Certification maintains the list below of debarred employers 
from the H-2B Temporary Non-Agricultural Program.  For more information on 
debarments under the H-2B Program, see 20 CFR 655.31. 
 

H-2B Labor Certification Debarment List  

Employer Name  Employer 
Location  

Start of 
Debarment  

End of 
Debarment  

Ponderosa Reforestation, Inc. Medford, OR April 27, 2012 April 26, 2015 

CD Quality Services 
Corporation 

Orlando, FL March 5, 2011 March 5, 2013 

Coast 2 Coast, Inc. Pasadena, TX March 5, 2011 March 5, 2013 

Concrete Designs, LLC. Garland, NE March 5, 2011 March 5, 2013 

Coral Cosmetics, LLC.  Dunbar, WV March 5, 2011 March 5, 2013 

Holiday Inn Express Hotel Latham, NY March 5, 2011 March 5, 2013 

 
 
 
 
 
 



 

U.S. Department of Labor 
Employment and Training Administration 

OFFICE OF FOREIGN LABOR CERTIFICATION 
 

Program Debarments 
 
 
Wage and Hour Division Debarments Barring Participation in OFLC Programs 

 
The link below is to a list of employers debarred or disqualified by the Wage and Hour Division. The Office of Foreign Labor Certification, 
within the Employment and Training Administration, will not accept for filing any application or attestation submitted by these employers 
under 20 CFR Part 656 or 20 CFR subparts A, B, C, D, E, H, or I.  (See, 20 CFR 655.750(d); 20 CFR 655.855(d).)  

 
http://www.dol.gov/whd/immigration/H1BDebarment.htm 

 
 
Permanent Labor Certification Program Debarments 

 
The Office of Foreign Labor Certification maintains the list below of debarred employers, attorneys, and/or agents from the Permanent Labor 
Certification Program. For more information on debarments under the Permanent Labor Certification Program, see 20 CFR 656.31(f). 

 

Permanent Labor Certification Debarment List 

Employer Name Employer Location Start of Debarment End of Debarment Violation CFR Citation 

Ms. Hee Jung Jenny Shin Fairfax Station, Virginia  May 12, 2017 May 12, 2020 Fraud or willful 
misrepresentation 

20 CFR §§ 656.20 and 
656.31(f)(1)(iv) 

Savvy Info Systems Inc Schaumburg, Illinois  May 9, 2017 May 9, 2020 Failure to respond to 
audit request 

20 CFR §§ 656.20 and 
656.31(f)(1)(iv) 

Global Infotech Inc Schaumburg, Illinois March 27, 2017 March 27, 2020 Failure to respond to 
audit request 

20 CFR §§ 656.20 and 
656.31(f)(1)(iv) 

http://www.dol.gov/whd/immigration/H1BDebarment.htm


 

H-2A Temporary Agricultural Labor Certification Program Debarments 
 
The Office of Foreign Labor Certification maintains the list below of employers debarred from the H-2A Temporary Labor Certification 
Agricultural Program.  For more information on debarments under the H-2A Program, see 20 CFR 655.182. 
 

H-2A Labor Certification Debarment List 

Employer Name Employer Location Start of Debarment End of Debarment Violation CFR Citation 

Yesenia Perez Axson, Georgia September 27, 2017 September 26, 2019 Failure to respond to 
audit request 20 CFR 

§655.182(d)(1)(vi) and 
(e)(3) (e)(3) 

Xavier Horne Lyons, Georgia September 27, 2017 September 26, 2019 Failure to respond to 
audit request 20 CFR 

§655.182(d)(1)(vi) and 
(e)(3) (e)(3) 

Travis and Tara Lambourn 
dba Lambourn Farm* 

Bowman, North Dakota July 5, 2017 July 5, 2020 WHD referral  

Jessica Carreon* Quitman, Georgia July 27, 2017 July 27, 2020 WHD referral  
John Hudson Farms Inc, 
dba John Hudson Farms 
(company) and Phillip L. 
Hudson (individual)* 

Newton Grove, North 
Carolina 

June 30, 2017 June 30, 2020 WHD referral  

Cathy Knecht dba Liberty 
Immigration* 

Plentywood, Montana June 16, 2017 June 16, 2020 WHD referral  

Nemorio Resendiz Moultrie, Georgia April 28, 2017 April 27, 2019 Failure to respond to 
audit request 

20 CFR 
§655.182(d)(1)(vi) and 
(e)(3) (e)(3) 

AB Ranch Stephenville, Texas April 28, 2017 April 27, 2019 Failure to respond to 
audit request 

20 CFR 
§655.182(d)(1)(vi) and 
(e)(3) (e)(3) 



 

H-2A Labor Certification Debarment List (cont’d) 

Employer Name Employer Location Start of Debarment End of Debarment Violation CFR Citation 
Delia Rojas* Lyons, Georgia April 14, 2017 April 14, 2020 WHD referral  

B & R Harvesting (company) 
and Paul Cruz (individual)* 

Collins, Georgia April 9, 2017 April 9, 2020 WHD referral  

County Fair Farm (company) 
and Andrew Williamson 
(individual)* 

Jefferson, Maine March 8, 2017 March 8, 2020 WHD referral  

David Jackson S. Deerfield, 
Massachusetts 

January 12, 2017 January 11, 2019 Failure to respond to 
audit request 

20 CFR 
§655.182(d)(1)(vi) and 
(e)(3) 

Travis and Tara Lambourn Bowman, North Dakota December 9, 2016 December 9, 2018 Failure to respond to 
audit request 

20 CFR 
§655.182(d)(1)(vi) and 
(e)(3) 

Ruben Ruiz (DeSoto 
Harvesting)* 

Arcadia, Florida  October 8, 2016 October 8, 2019 WHD referral  

69 Farms LLC Preston, Idaho September 24, 2016 September 23, 2018 Failure to respond to 
audit request 

20 CFR 
§655.182(d)(1)(vi) and 
(e)(3) 

Vern Stratton Farms Orem, Utah September 24, 2016 September 24, 2018 Failure to respond to 
audit request 

20 CFR 
§655.182(d)(1)(vi) and 
(e)(3) 

Gonzalo Fernandez*  Watsonville, California  August 25, 2016 August 24, 2019 WHD referral  

German Farms Fullerton, North Dakota  August 5, 2016 August 4, 2018 Failure to respond to 
audit request 

20 CFR 
§655.182(d)(1)(vi) and 
(e)(3) 

Rosalva Garcia Dade City, Florida July 27, 2016 June 27, 2018 Failure to respond to 
audit request 

20 CFR 
§655.182(d)(1)(vi) and 
(e)(3) 



 

H-2A Labor Certification Debarment List (cont’d) 

Employer Name Employer Location Start of Debarment End of Debarment Violation CFR Citation 

John & Neta Leopky Farms Seminole, Texas July 21, 2016 July 20, 2018 
A violation of the 
requirements of § 
655.135(j) or (k) 

20 CFR § 
655.182(d)(1)(viii) 

Triangle J Farms Seminole, Texas July 21, 2016 July 20, 2018 Failure to pay or 
provide the required 

 

20 CFR 655.182(d)(1)(i)     

 
Saxtons River Orchards, Inc. Saxtons River, Vermont July 9, 2016 July 8, 2018 Failure to respond to 

audit request 
20 CFR 
§655.182(d)(1)(vi) and 
(e)(3) 

Jim and Ann Shipley William 
Shipley* 

Speedwell, Tennessee May 6, 2016 May 5, 2019 WHD referral  

C Hanging L Ranch LLP Choteau, Montana April 10, 2016 April 11, 2018 Failure to respond to 
audit request 

20 CFR 
§655.182(d)(1)(vi) and 
(e)(3) 

Todd Daulton Nancy, Kentucky March 13, 2016 March 12, 2018 Failure to respond to 
audit request 

20 CFR 
§655.182(d)(1)(vi) and 
(e)(3) 

M Keneston Corporation Rensselaer, New York December 31, 2015 December 20, 2017 Non-payment of 
certification fee 

20 CFR § 655.182(d)(2) 
and (e)(3) 

Trinity Livestock Partnership Earth, Texas December 30, 2015 December 29, 2017 Failure to respond to 
audit request 

20 CFR 
§655.182(d)(1)(vi) and 
(e)(3) 

David C. Martinez Lyons, Georgia December 17, 2015 December 16, 2017 Failure to respond to 
audit request 

20 CFR 
§655.182(d)(1)(vi) and 
(e)(3) 

Leslie Renee Drew Lyons, Georgia December 17, 2015 December 16, 2017 Failure to respond to 
audit request 

20 CFR 
§655.182(d)(1)(vi) and 
(e)(3) 



 

H-2A Labor Certification Debarment List (cont’d) 

Employer Name Employer Location Start of Debarment End of Debarment Violation CFR Citation 

Jenschke Farms* Fredericksburg, Texas August 7, 2015 August 7, 2018 WHD referral  

Ferrell Farms* Hermitage, Arkansas May 5, 2015 May 5, 2018 WHD referral  

Peach Crest Farm LLC* Stratford, Oklahoma February 10, 2015 February 9, 2018 WHD referral  

Fernandez Farms* Watsonville, California December 2, 2014 December 1, 2017 WHD referral  

 
* Wage and Hour Division Debarment:    Please direct inquiries to the Wage and Hour Division for further information.   



 

 
H-2B Temporary Non-Agricultural Labor Certification Program Debarments 

 
The Office of Foreign Labor Certification maintains a list below of debarred employers from the H-2B Temporary Non-Agricultural 
Labor Certification Program. For more information on debarments under the H-2B Program, see 20 CFR 655.31. 

 

H-2B Labor Certification Debarment List 

Employer Name Employer Location Start of Debarment End of Debarment Violation CFR Citation 

  
    

 
Ineligible Farm Labor Contractors Under the Migrant and Seasonal Agricultural Worker Protection Act 

 
Under the Migrant and Seasonal Agricultural Worker Protection Act (MSPA), only a person holding a valid certificate of registration 
issued by the Secretary of Labor may engage in farm labor contracting activities. The Department’s Wage and Hour Division 
maintains a list of individuals who MAY NOT engage in any activity as a Farm Labor Contractor (FLC) or as a Farm Labor 
Contractor Employee (FLCE) as defined under MSPA. This list is updated on a continual basis and may be accessed here:  
http://www.dol.gov/whd/regs/statutes/mspa_debar.htm 

http://www.dol.gov/whd/regs/statutes/mspa_debar.htm


U.S. Department of Labor 
Employment and Training Administration 

OFFICE OF FOREIGN LABOR CERTIFICATION 
 

Program Debarments 
 

Wage and Hour Division Debarments Barring Participation in OFLC Programs 
 

The link below is to a list of employers debarred or disqualified by the Wage and Hour Division. The Office of Foreign Labor Certification, within the 
Employment and Training Administration, will not accept for filing any application or attestation submitted by these employers under 20 CFR Part 656 or 
20 CFR subparts A, B, C, D, E, H, or I. (See, 20 CFR 655.750(d); 20 CFR 655.855(d).) 

 
http://www.dol.gov/whd/immigration/H1BDebarment.htm 

 

Permanent Labor Certification Program Debarments 
 

The Office of Foreign Labor Certification maintains the list below of debarred employers, attorneys, and/or agents from the Permanent Labor Certification 
Program. For more information on debarments under the Permanent Labor Certification Program, see 20 CFR 656.31(f). 

 
Permanent Labor Certification Debarment List 

Entity Entity Type Employer Location Start of Debarment End of Debarment Violation CFR Citation 

George’s Chicken, LLC Employer Harrisonburg, Virginia December 19, 2017 December 19, 2020 Failure to respond to audit 
request 

20 CFR §§ 656.20 and 
656.31(f)(1)(iv) 

George’s Processing, Inc Employer Fayetteville, Arkansas December 19, 2017 December 19, 2020 Failure to respond to audit 
request 

20 CFR §§ 656.20 and 
656.31(f)(1)(iv) 

Global Infotech Inc Employer Schaumburg, Illinois March 27, 2017 March 27, 2020 Failure to respond to audit 
request 

20 CFR §§ 656.20 and 
656.31(f)(1)(iv) 

Harrison Poultry, Inc. Employer Bethlehem, Georgia June 29, 2018 June 29, 2021 Failure to respond to audit 
request 

20 CFR §§ 656.20 and 
656.31(f)(1)(iv) 

Ms. Hee Jung Jenny Shin Attorney Fairfax Station, Virginia May 12, 2017 May 12, 2020 Fraud or willful 
misrepresentation 

20 CFR §§ 656.10(b)(3) and 
656.31(f)(1)(vi) 

Savvy Info Systems Inc Employer Schaumburg, Illinois May 9, 2017 May 9, 2020 Failure to respond to audit 
request 

20 CFR §§ 656.20 and 
656.31(f)(1)(iv) 

http://www.dol.gov/whd/immigration/H1BDebarment.htm


 

H-2A Temporary Agricultural Labor Certification Program Debarments 
 

The Office of Foreign Labor Certification maintains the list below of employers debarred from the H-2A Temporary Labor Certification 
Agricultural Program. For more information on debarments under the H-2A Program, see 20 CFR 655.182. 

 
H-2A Labor Certification Debarment List 

Entity Entity Type Employer 
Location 

Start of Debarment End of Debarment Violation CFR Citation 

3 Mil Iron Ranch* Employer Craig, Colorado June 13, 2019 June 12, 2021 WHD Debarment  

Abe-Nancy Froese Employer Seminole, Texas November 23, 2017 November 23, 2019 Failure to respond to 
audit request 

20 CFR §655.182(d)(1)(vi) 
and (e)(3) (e)(3) 

Antonio Sanchez* Employer Clinton, North Carolina September 5, 2019 September 5, 2022 WHD Debarment  

Argy Georgiou* Employer Galenton, Colorado July 1, 2018 June 30, 2021 WHD Debarment  

Aricel Lopez* Labor Contractor 
(unregistered) 

Freemont, North 
Carolina 

May 30, 2018 May 30, 2021 WHD Debarment  

A. Sam Family Farms, LLC* Employer Dunkirk, New York June 3, 2019 June 3, 2022 WHD Debarment  

A.S. Payroll Account, Inc* Employer Dunkirk, New York June 2, 2019 June 3, 2022 WHD Debarment  

B & R Harvesting and Paul 
Cruz (individual)* 

Labor Contractor Collins, Georgia April 9, 2017 April 9, 2020 WHD Debarment  

Bartolo Hernandez* Labor Contractor Lyons, Georgia January 10, 2018 January 10, 2021 WHD Debarment  

Beiza Brothers Harvesting, 
LLC* 

Labor Contractor Moultrie, Georgia October 20, 2018 October 20, 2021 WHD Debarment  

Boze Farms, Inc Employer Carthage, Tennessee May 24, 2019 May 24, 2021 Failure to respond to 
audit request 

20 CFR §655.182(d)(1)(vi) 
and (e)(3) 

Calvin Bachmann Farms* Employer Durham, Oklahoma July 20, 2018 July 19, 2021 WHD Debarment  

Catarina Garcia* Employer Alma, Georgia February 2, 2019 February 2, 2021 WHD Debarment  

Cathy Knecht dba Liberty 
Immigration* 

Agent Plentywood, Montana June 16, 2017 June 16, 2020 WHD Debarment  

Charles Auger and Deborah 
Auger 

Employer Littleton, Massachusetts April 19, 2019 April 19, 2022 Failure to comply 
with the employer's 
obligations to recruit 
U.S. workers 

20 CFR §655.182(b) 
and (d)(1)(iii) 

Chris Hickerson  Employer Flemingsburg, Kentucky  July  26, 2019 July  26, 2021 Failure to respond to 
audit request 

20 CFR §655.182(d)(1)(vi) 
and (e)(3) 

Christopher L. Smith Farms* Employer Glasgow, Kentucky March 29, 2018 March 29, 2021 WHD Debarment  



H-2A Labor Certification Debarment List 

Entity Entity Type Employer 
Location 

Start of Debarment End of Debarment Violation CFR Citation 

County Fair Farm (company) 
and Andrew Williamson 
(individual)* 

Agent Jefferson, Maine March 8, 2017 March 8, 2020 WHD Debarment  

Crowne Cold Storage, LLC* Employer Stockton, California March 17, 2019 March 17, 2022 WHD Debarment  

Delia Rojas* Employer Lyons, Georgia April 14, 2017 April 14, 2020 WHD Debarment  

Denton L. Cook / 
Cook Farms* 

Employer Chatham, Virginia October 11, 2017 October 11, 2020 WHD Debarment  

Diana Mae 
Carter 

Employer Reidsville, Georgia May 24, 2019 May 24, 2021 Failure to respond to 
audit request 

20 CFR §655.182(d)(1)(vi) 
and (e)(3) 

Double D Farms Employer Magnolia, Arkansas August 29, 2019 August  29, 2021 Failure to comply 
with the employer's 
obligations to recruit 
U.S. workers 

655.182(d)(1)(iii) 

Dove Creek Farms Employer Mount Vernon, Texas February 9, 2018 February 8, 2020 Failure to respond to 
audit request 

20 CFR §655.182(d)(1)(vi) 
and (e)(3) 

Edward Jaimes* Employer Pearson, Georgia September 23, 2019 September 23, 2022 WHD Debarment  

Erika Rosales* Employer Alma, Georgia February 2, 2019 February 2, 2021 WHD Debarment  

Evergreen Produce Employer Adel, Georgia October 29, 2017 October 29, 2019 Failure to comply 
with the employer's 
obligations to recruit 
U.S. workers 

655.182(d)(1)(iii) 

Georgiou Shearing* Employer Galenton, Colorado July 1, 2018 June 30, 2021 WHD Debarment  

Golden Fresh Farms 
Enterprises, L.P. dba Golden 
Fresh Farms, LP* 

Employer Lyons, Georgia November 1, 2018 November 1, 2021 WHD Debarment  

Greg Salgado Enterprises, 
LLC* 

Labor Contractor Chicago, Illinois May 17, 2019 May 17, 2022 WHD Debarment  

Hancock Citrus Harvesting, 
LLC* 

Labor Contractor Dade City, Florida September 4, 2017 September 4, 2020 WHD Debarment  

Indian Ridge Oyster 
Farm, LLC 

Employer Momtegut, Louisiana July 26, 2019 July  26, 2022 Failure to respond to 
audit request 

20 CFR §655.182(d)(1)(vi) 
and (e)(3) 

J & L Harvesting, LLC* Employer Claremont, South 
Dakota 

May 8, 2018 May 7, 2021 WHD Debarment  

J.C. Castro dba Castro 
Harvesting* 

Employer Vidalia, Georgia February 27, 2018 February 27, 2021 WHD Debarment  



H-2A Labor Certification Debarment List 

Entity Entity Type Employer 
Location 

Start of Debarment End of Debarment Violation CFR Citation 

J. Rivera Harvesting, Inc. 
d/b/a J. Rivera 
Harvesting* 

Employer Wauchula, North 
Carolina 

November 30, 2018 November 30, 2021 WHD Debarment  

Jacobs Farm, Inc* Employer Dunkirk, New York June 3, 2019 June 3, 2022 WHD Debarment  

Jeremy Leseueur Labor Contractor Lyons, Georgia August 31, 2018 August 31, 2020 Failure to respond to 
audit request 

20 CFR §655.182(d)(1)(vi) 
and (e)(3) 

Jasiel Rodriguez-Nunez* Labor Contractor Raleigh, North Carolina April 30, 2018 April 30, 2021 WHD Debarment  

Jessica Carreon* Labor Contractor Quitman, Georgia July 27, 2017 July 27, 2020 WHD Debarment  

Jesus Contreras* Labor Contractor Willacoochee, Georgia June 13, 2019 June 13, 2022 WHD Debarment  

Jesus Ledesma Employer Mulberry, Florida March 2, 2018 March 1, 2020 Failure to respond to 
audit request 

20 CFR §655.182(d)(1)(vi) 
and (e)(3) (e)(3) 

John Hudson Farms Inc, dba 
John Hudson Farms 
(company) and Phillip L. 
Hudson (individual)* 

Employer Newton Grove, 
North Carolina 

June 30, 2017 June 30, 2020 WHD Debarment  

K&K Farms Employer Monett, Missouri November 8, 2018 November 8, 2020 Failure to respond to 
audit request 

20 CFR §655.182(d)(1)(vi) 

Kevin Ramey d/b/a Kevin 
Ramsey Farms 

Employer Butler, Oklahoma July 19, 2019 July  19, 2021 Failure to comply 
with the employer's 
obligations to recruit 
U.S. workers 

20 CFR 655.182 (d)(1)(iii) 

Klondike Crawfish Farms, 
LLC 

Employer Church Point, Louisiana January 19, 2019 January 19, 2021 Failure to respond to 
audit request 

20 CFR §655.182(d)(1)(vi) 
and (e)(3) 

Lakeisha Wilcox* Labor Contractor McRae, Georgia December 23, 2018 December 23, 2021 WHD Debarment  

Laura Orellana* Employer Vidalia, Georgia February 4, 2019 February 4, 2021 WHD Debarment  

Marisa Garcia Pineda- H2A 
FLC* 

Employer Statonsburg, North 
Carolina 

March 5, 2018 March 4, 2021 WHD Debarment  

Maximiano Larralde* Employer Sterling, Colorado July 1, 2018 June 30, 2021 WHD Debarment  

Monica Saavedra1 Agent Douglas, Georgia May 30, 2018 May 29, 2021 Failure to comply 
with the employer's 
obligations to recruit 
U.S. workers 

20 CFR §655.182(b) and 
(d)(1)(iii) 

 
 

1 Monica Saavedra acted as an authorized agent on the behalf of two different employers resulting in two separate debarment actions. 



 

H-2A Labor Certification Debarment List 

Entity Entity Type Employer Location Start of Debarment End of Debarment Violation CFR Citation 

Monica Saavedra Agent Douglas, Georgia October 29, 2017 October 29, 2019 Failure to comply with 
the employer's 
obligations to recruit 
U.S. workers 

20 CFR §655.182(d)(1)(iii) 

Munger Bros., LLC* Employer Stockton, California March 17, 2019 March 17, 2022 WHD Debarment  

Myers Ranch* Employer Craig, Colorado June 13, 2019 June 12, 2021 WHD Debarment  

P & M LLC* Labor 
Contractor 

Sterling, Colorado July 1, 2018 June 30, 2021 WHD Debarment  

Pequeño Harvesting, LLC* Labor 
Contractor 

Labelle, Florida September 21, 2018 September 21, 2021 WHD Debarment  

Peter Larralde* Employer Galenton, Colorado July 1, 2018 June 30, 2021 WHD Debarment  

Placement Services Global Agent Kansas City, Missouri August 16, 2019 August 16, 2021 Failure to comply with 
the employer's 
obligations to recruit 
U.S. workers 

20 CFR §655.182(d)(1)(iii) 

Placement Services Global1 Agent Kansas City, Missouri July 19, 2019 July  19, 2021 Failure to comply with 
the employer's 
obligations to recruit 
U.S. workers 

20 CFR 655.182(a)(d)(1)(iii) 

REB Cane Creek Farms, Inc 
dba REB Cane Creek Farms* 

Employer Vardaman, Mississippi September 9, 2017 September 9, 2020 WHD Debarment  

Rene Rodriguez dba 
Rodriguez Farm Work* 

Employer Vidalia, Georgia July 18, 2019 July 18, 2021 WHD Debarment  

Renfro Farms, LLC Employer Bailey, North Carolina May 24, 2019 May 24, 2021 Failure to respond to audit 
request 

20 CFR §655.182(d)(1)(vi) 
and (e)(3) (e)(3) 

Ruben Ruiz (DeSoto 
Harvesting)* 

Labor 
Contractor 

Arcadia, Florida October 8, 2016 October 8, 2019 WHD Debarment  

Ruben V. Serna 
dba Serna Harvesting* 

Labor 
Contractor 

Clinton, North Carolina September 5, 2018 September 5, 2021 WHD Debarment  

Sarbanand Farms, LLC* Employer Stockton, California March 17, 2019 March 17, 2022 WHD Debarment  

Sebastian Larralde* Employer Galenton, Colorado July 1, 2018 June 30, 2021 WHD Debarment  

 
 
                                                
1 Placement Services Global acted as an authorized agent on the behalf of two different employers resulting in two separate debarment actions. 



 

H-2A Labor Certification Debarment List 

Entity Entity Type Employer Location Start of Debarment End of Debarment Violation CFR Citation 

S&J Labor Contractors LLC* Labor 
Contractor 

Lyons, Georgia November 3, 2018 November 3, 2021 WHD Debarment  

Tiara Williams* Labor 
Contractor 

Alma, Georgia December 23, 2018 December 23, 2021 WHD Debarment  

Travis and Tara Lambourn 
dba Lambourn Farm* 

Employer Bowman, North Dakota July 5, 2017 July 5, 2020 WHD Debarment  

Triple F Harvesting, LLC* Employer LaBelle, Florida August 30, 2018 August 30, 2021 WHD Debarment  

Tri-State Lawn Care, Inc., 
and Michael Anthony 
Wheeler2 

 

Employer Flatwoods, Kentucky August 16, 2019 August 16, 2029 WHD Debarment  

Vasquez Citrus & Hauling, 
Inc.* 

Labor 
Contractor 

Lake Placid, Florida March 7, 2018 March 6, 2021 WHD Debarment  

Worldwide Staffing LLC* Labor 
Contractor 

Dunn, North Carolina March 7, 2018 March 7, 2021 WHD Debarment  

 

* Wage and Hour Division Debarment: Please direct inquiries to the Wage and Hour Division for further information. 

                                                
2 Debarment is based on the decision of the U.S. District Court for the Eastern District of Kentucky, following an investigation by the U.S. Department of Labor's Wage and Hour Division (WHD). 
For more information see the WHD news release.  
 

https://www.dol.gov/newsroom/releases/whd/whd20190819


H-2B Temporary Non-Agricultural Labor Certification Program Debarments 
 

The Office of Foreign Labor Certification maintains a list below of debarred employers from the H-2B Temporary Non-Agricultural 
Labor Certification Program. For more information on debarments under the H-2B Program, see 20 CFR655.31. 

 

H-2B Labor Certification Debarment List 

Entity Entity Type Employer Location Start of Debarment End of Debarment Violation CFR Citation 

Ameritek Industries Employer San Fernando, California March 30, 2018 March 29, 2020 Failure to respond to audit 
request 

20 CFR §655.73(f)(8) 

Braulio’s Lawn 
Maintenance, Inc 

Employer Mundelein, Illinois May 6, 2019 May 6, 2021 Failure to respond to audit 
request 

20 CFR §655.182(d)(1)(vi) 
and (e)(3) 

CC’s Landscaping, Inc. 
d/b/a CC’s Landscaping* 

Employer Mayfield Heights, Ohio February 4, 2019 February 4, 2022 WHD debarment  

Cheep Lawnmowing, LLC 
dba Cheep Lawnmowing* 

Employer Bentonville, Arkansas July 18, 2019 July 18, 2024 WHD debarment  

Clarke’s Landscaping and 
Lawn Care, Inc.** 

Employer Telford, Pennsylvania November 9, 2017 November 9, 2022 OIG referral  

Dagel Steel Construction, 
Inc; d/b/a Dagel Steel Inc 
and Dagel Steel* 

Employer Florence, South Carolina June 17, 2019 June 17, 2024 WHD debarment  

Empresa Primos, 
Inc. d/b/a Taqueria 
Jalisco* 

Employer Plainview, Texas August 9, 2019 August 9, 2021 WHD debarment  

Environmental Site 
Consultants, Inc. 

Employer Flint, Michigan February 22, 2019 February 22, 2021 Failure to respond to audit 
request 

20 CFR 655.73(a)(2) and 
(f)(8), 

EWC & Associates, Inc. dba 
Portola Valley Training 
Center and Gilroy Gates 
(company) and Kevin 
Chambers (individual)* 

Employer Portola Valley, California January 25, 2019 December 31, 2019 WHD debarment  

Georgina’s Taqueria* Employer Traverse City, Michigan October 6, 2018 October 6, 2020 WHD debarment  

Gomez Lawn Care, LLC 
d/b/a Gomez Lawncare* 

Employer Holland, Michigan December 7, 2018 December 7, 2023 WHD debarment  

Gordon Stone Company LLC Employer Gordon, Texas December 17, 2018 December 10, 2021 Failure to respond to audit 
request 

20 CFR §655.73(f)(8) 

Hernandez Lawn 
Services, Inc. 

Employer Round Lake, Illinois April 12, 2018 April 11, 2020 Failure to respond to audit 
request 

20 CFR §655.73(f)(8) 

John Stinebaugh, DBA John 
Stienebaugh Racing Stables 

Employer San Antonio, Texas March 30, 2018 March 29, 2020 Failure to respond to audit 
request 

20 CFR §655.73(f)(8) 



H-2B Labor Certification Debarment List 

Entity Entity Type Employer Location Start of Debarment End of Debarment Violation CFR Citation 

Larry Luster/ Luster Packard 
Inc. dba Ciro & Sal’s Northern 
Italian Restaurant 

Employer Provincetown, 
Massachusetts 

May 31, 2019 May 31, 2022 Failure to respond to audit 
request 

20 CFR §655.73(f)(8) 

Matt Driver LLC dba Atlantic 
Soccer Factory 

Employer Egg Harbor Twp, New 
Jersey 

August 25, 2019 August 25, 2022 WHD debarment  

Pudgy Pelican, Inc. dba 
Zoe's Beachfront Eatery* 

Employer Avalon, New Jersey February 11, 2019 February 11, 2021 WHD debarment  

Samjosh Excavations & 
Construction LLC 

Employer Haledon, New Jersey August 1, 2019 August 1, 2022 Failure to respond to audit 
request 

20 CFR §655.73(f)(8) 

 

 

Ineligible Farm Labor Contractors Under the Migrant and Seasonal Agricultural Worker Protection Act 
 

Under the Migrant and Seasonal Agricultural Worker Protection Act (MSPA), only a person holding a valid certificate of registration issued by the 
Secretary of Labor may engage in farm labor contracting activities. The Department’s Wage and Hour Division maintains a list of individuals who 

MAY NOT engage in any activity as a Farm Labor Contractor (FLC) or as a Farm Labor Contractor Employee (FLCE) as defined under MSPA. 
This list is updated on a continual basis and may be accessed here: http://www.dol.gov/whd/regs/statutes/mspa_debar.htm 

* Wage and Hour Division Debarment: Please direct inquiries to the Wage and Hour Division for further information. 
** Department of Labor, Office of Inspector General (OIG) investigative findings: Please direct inquiries to the Department of Labor’s Office of Inspectors General 
for further information. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

http://www.dol.gov/whd/regs/statutes/mspa_debar.htm
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U.S. Department of Labor 
Employment and Training Administration  

OFFICE OF FOREIGN LABOR CERTIFICATION 
 

Program Debarments 
 
 
Wage and Hour Division Debarments Barring Participation in OFLC Programs 

 
The link below is to a list of employers debarred or disqualified by the Wage and Hour 
Division. The Office of Foreign Labor Certification, within the Employment and Training 
Administration, will not accept for filing any application or attestation submitted by these 
employers under 20 CFR Part 656 or 20 CFR subparts A, B, C, D, E, H, or I.  (See, 20 
CFR 655.750(d); 20 CFR 655.855(d).) 

 
http://www.dol.gov/whd/immigration/H1BDebarment.htm 

 
 
Permanent Labor Certification Program Debarments 

 
The Office of Foreign Labor Certification maintains the list below of debarred 
employers, attorneys, and/or agents from the Permanent Labor Certification Program. 
For more information on debarments under the Permanent Labor Certification Program, 
see 20 CFR 656.31(f). 

 

Permanent Labor Certification Debarment List 

Employer Name Employer Location Start of Debarment End of Debarment 

    

    

 
  

http://www.dol.gov/whd/immigration/H1BDebarment.htm
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H-2A Temporary Agricultural Labor Certification Program Debarments 
 
The Office of Foreign Labor Certification maintains the list below of employers debarred 
from the H-2A Temporary Labor Certification Agricultural Program.  For more information 
on debarments under the H-2A Program, see 20 CFR 655.182. 
 

H-2A Labor Certification Debarment List 

Employer Name Employer Location Start of Debarment End of Debarment 

Don Griebel Comstock, Nebraska August 27, 2015 August 26, 2017 

Agecy I LLC Idabel, Oklahoma August 27, 2015 August 26, 2017 

John R. Cook Carlisle, Kentucky August 27, 2015 August 26, 2017 

Jenschke Farms Fredericksburg, TX August 7, 2015 August 7, 2018 

Leslie Cook Carlisle, Kentucky June 22, 2015 June 21, 2017 

Valley View Orchards Hebron, Maine July 22, 2015 July 21, 2017 

Chris Robinson Paint Lick, New York June 19, 2015 June 18, 2017 

Haiti/USA Workforce Miami, Florida June 19, 2015 June 18, 2017 

K & W Enterprises Albion, New York June 19, 2015 June 18, 2017 

Jeremy Chandler Climax, Minnesota June 19, 2015 June 18, 2017 

Leonard Smith Farms Miami, Florida June 19, 2015 June 18, 2017 

Ferrell Farms Hermitage, Arkansas May 5, 2015 May 5, 2018 

Altendorf Transport, 
Inc. 

 Minto, North Dakota April 24, 2015 April 23, 2017 

Peter Peters  Seminole, Texas April 24, 2015 April 23, 2017 

Glenda Harrod Farms  Hermitage, Arkansas April 15, 2015 April 14, 2016 
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H-2A Labor Certification Debarment List 

Agecy II LLC 
Ipswich, South 
Dakota 

March 25, 2015 March 24, 2017 

First American 
Holding 

Aubrey, Texas March 25, 2015 March 24, 2017 

City Pinestraw and 
Harvesting 

Baxley, Georgia April 11, 2015 April 10, 2016 

Louie M. Asumendi Nampa, Idaho March 11, 2015 March 10, 2017 

Geronimo Sheep Co. Vernal, Utah June 23, 2014 June 22, 2017 

Macky and Brad 
Farms 

Plains, Texas February 13, 2015 February 12, 2016 

Peach Crest Farm 
LLC 

Stratford, Oklahoma February 10, 2015 February 9, 2018 

Cisco Produce, Inc. Cairo, Georgia December 10, 2014 December 9, 2016 

F & W Farms Ingalls, Kansas December 10, 2014 December 9, 2015 

Alteric Jean-Charles 
Fort Lauderdale, 
Florida 

December 6, 2014 December 5, 2015 

Old Tree 
Farm/Verpaalen 
Custom Service LLC 

Volga, South Dakota December 1, 2014 December 1, 2017 

Maple Ridge Custom 
Services LLC 

Altheimer, Arkansas November 16, 2014 November 15, 2015 

Mark Duncan Roosevelt, Utah November 16, 2014 November 15, 2016 

Sharon Mathis Tifton, Georgia November 16, 2014 November 15, 2016 

SRT Farms Morton, Texas November 16, 2014 November 15, 2016 

Slash EV Ranch LLP Rifle, Colorado November 15, 2014 November 14, 2015 

Caddo Creek Ranch, 
dba, Paradise Ranch 

Caddo, Texas July 20, 2014 July 19, 2016 

Loewen Harvesting 
LLC 

Brownfield, Texas August 20, 2014 August 19, 2015 
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H-2A Labor Certification Debarment List 

Reimer’s Inc.  Lakin, Kansas August 23, 2014 August 22, 2016 

Rolle Farm Labor 
Contractor 

Miami, Florida August 23, 2014 August 22, 2016 

Autumn Hill Orchard 
Groton, 
Massachusetts  

July 6, 2014 July 5, 2016 

Anton Fertilizer, Inc. Dighton, Kansas March 30, 2014 March 29, 2016 

Great Plains Fluid 
Service, Inc. 

Greensburg, Kansas March 30, 2014 March 29, 2016 

Promax Inc. Whitewater, Kansas May 15, 2014 May 14, 2016 

Stahlman Apiaries, 
Inc. 

Selby,  
South Dakota 

February 15, 2014 February 14, 2016 

J & J Harvesting 
Leads, North 
Dakota 

January 19, 2014 January 18, 2016 

Wagner Farm 
East Windsor, 
Connecticut 

January 19, 2014 January 18, 2016 

Brian Durham 
Brodhead,  
Kentucky 

September 20, 2013 September 19, 2015 

S. Miller Livestock, 
LLC 

Manti, Utah September 20, 2013 September 19, 2015 

North Country 
Landscape 

Coxackie,  
New York 

September 20, 2013 September 19, 2015 

Odegard Harvesting Whitetail, Montana September 20, 2013 September 19, 2015 

DBJ Farms 
Homestead, 
Montana 

September 20, 2013 September 19, 2015 

Linda White & 
Associates, Inc. 

Livingston, 
Louisiana 

June 30, 2013 June 29, 2016 

Delta Ridge Ranch 
LLC 

Carenco, Louisiana June 29, 2013 June 28, 2016 

George Laprairie Jr. Jonesville, Louisiana June 29, 2013 June 28, 2016 

Goldmine Plantation Edgard, Louisiana June 29, 2013 June 28, 2016 

Margarita Cardenas Lyons, Georgia August 10, 2013 August 9, 2016 
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H-2B Temporary Non-Agricultural Labor Certification Program Debarments 
 
The Office of Foreign Labor Certification maintains a list below of debarred employers 
from the H-2B Temporary Non-Agricultural Labor Certification Program.  For more 
information on debarments under the H-2B Program, see 20 CFR 655.31. 
 

H-2B Labor Certification Debarment List 

Employer Name Employer Location Start of Debarment End of Debarment 

El Tule Mexican/Peruvian 
Restaurant LLC d/b/a El 
Tule 

Lambertville, New 
Jersey 

April 25, 2015 April 24, 2017 

Julie’s Outdoor 
Enhancement & Design, 
Inc. 

Kill Devil Hills,  
North Carolina 

April 3, 2015 April 2, 2017 

La Jomac Group Houma, Louisiana  March 11, 2015 March 10, 2017 

White Pine Landscaping, 
LLC 

Bemidji, Minnesota February 18, 2015 February 17, 2017 

El Mazatlan, Inc.  Glasgow, Kentucky February 18, 2015 February 17, 2017 

Julie’s Cleaning Services, 
LLC 

Kill Devil Hills,  
North Carolina 

February 18, 2015 February 17, 2017 

Jalisco Inc. D/B/A  
La Fiesta 

Plattsmouth, 
Nebraska 

January 22, 2015 January 21, 2017 

JAG Premier, Inc. 
New Orleans, 
Louisiana 

January 14, 2015 January 13, 2017 

Goobies Cotton Candy, 
LLC 

McAllen, Texas January 14, 2015 January 13, 2017 

JP Landscaping, Inc. 
Levittown, 
Pennsylvania 

January 14, 2015 January 13, 2017 

Fiesta Charra Dewitt, Michigan December 3, 2014 December 2, 2016 

Valley Industrial Coating, 
LLC 

Brownsville, Texas November 19, 2014 November 18, 2016 

Tarro de Oro 
Scottsboro, 
Alabama 

October 30, 2014 October 29, 2016 

Global Labor Services, 
LLC 

Brownsville, Texas October 30, 2014 October 29, 2016 

Mike Sabetta & Son 
Landscaping, Inc.  

Wickliffe, Ohio September 16, 2014 September 15, 2016 

Bunkie Wood Products Bunkie, Louisiana September 4, 2014 September 3, 2016 
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H-2B Labor Certification Debarment List 

Stone Mountain, Inc. Brownsville, Texas September 4, 2014 September 3, 2016 

Kellystone, Inc. Elgin, Texas September 4, 2014 September 3, 2016 

Casper Guadalajara 
Operations, LLC DBA 
Guadalajara Restaurant 
Group 

Casper, Wyoming July 10, 2014 July 9, 2016 

Universal Landscape 
Services 

New Braunfels, 
Texas 

May 29, 2014 May 28, 2016 

Myers International 
Midways, Inc. 
Inc. 

Gibsonton,  
Florida 

March 7, 2014 March 6, 2016 

Pacheco Contracting LLC 
Warren,  
Arkansas 

January 22, 2014 January 21, 2016 

Butler Creek Landscaping 
Trout Creek, 
Montana 

December 30, 
2013 

December 29, 
2015 

Gallegos Corporation 
Harvey, 
Louisiana 

December 30, 
2013 

December 29, 
2015 

Richard Vega Racing 
Stable 

Bensalem, 
Pennsylvania 

December 30, 
2013 

December 29, 
2015 

Sugar Bowl Restaurant 
Gaylord, 
Michigan 

December 30, 
2013 

December 29, 
2015 

Tri-State Gunite of New 
York 

Sloatsburg, New 
York 

December 30, 
2013 

December 29, 
2015 

Island Hills Golf Club 
Sayville, New 
York 

December 18, 
2013 

December 17, 
2015 

Ramnee Enterprises, LLC 
St. Petersburg, 
Florida 

November 15, 
2013 

November 14, 
2015 

Valentin Barrera d/b/a 
Val's Construction 

Fort Stockton, 
Texas 

November 15, 
2013 

November 14, 
2015 

Gonzalez Plumbing 
Brownsville, 
Texas 

November 15, 
2013 

November 14, 
2015 

Noriega Puente 
Construction 

Pflugerville, 
Texas 

October 2, 2013 October 1, 2015 

J Mario Lawn & 
Landscaping 

Sterling, Virginia October 2, 2013 October 1, 2015 

All U Need Remodeling, 
Inc. 

Lilburn, Georgia October 2, 2013 October 1, 2015 

G.E.M. Interiors, Inc. Milford, OH 
February 13, 
2013 

February 13, 
2016 
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Ineligible Farm Labor Contractors Under the Migrant and Seasonal Agricultural 
Worker Protection Act  
 
Under the Migrant and Seasonal Agricultural Worker Protection Act (MSPA), only a 
person holding a valid certificate of registration issued by the Secretary of Labor may 
engage in farm labor contracting activities. The Department’s Wage and Hour Division 
maintains a list of individuals who MAY NOT engage in any activity as a Farm Labor 
Contractor (FLC) or as a Farm Labor Contractor Employee (FLCE) as defined under 
MSPA. This list is updated on a continual basis and may be accessed here:  
http://www.dol.gov/whd/regs/statutes/mspa_debar.htm  

http://www.dol.gov/whd/regs/statutes/mspa_debar.htm
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